AGENDA

The Municipality of Regular Council meeting to be held
PO S?? n Tuesday May 5, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.
Council Chambers @250 Clark, Powassan & Electronic
CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. DISCLOSURE OF MONETARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF
=01 AND GLNERAL NATURE THEREQF
4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
5. _PRESENTATIONS
6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
6.1 Regular Councit meeting of April 21, 2020
7. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
7.1 Trout Creek Community Centre Board minutes of March 11, 2020
8. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM APPOINTED BOARDS
8.1 North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unijt- Board of Health minutes of February 26, 2020
8.2 ACED-2019 Annual Report
8.3 ACED- Digital Main Street-Presence Report
8.4 ACED- Almaguin Highlands COVID-19 Business Outreach Survey-Final Report
9. STAFF REPORTS
10. BY-LAWS
10.1 By-Law 2020-12 Water and Wastewater Budget
10.2 By-Law 2020-13 Water and Wastewater Rates 2020
10.3 By-Law 2020-14 Dogs and Kennel Licencing
10.4 By-Law 2020-15 Regulate Backyard Chickens
10.5 By-Law 2020-16 2020 Budget
11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
11.1" Trout Creek Sidewalk Rehabilitation-MTO- R.Hall
12. NEW BUSINESS
12.1 OCWA- Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems Quarterly Operations Report
13. CORRESPONDENCE
14, ADDENDUM
15. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
16. NOTICE OF SCHEDULE OF COUNCIL AND BOARD MEETINGS
17. PUBLIC QUESTIONS
18. CLOSED SESSION
19. MOTION TO ADJOURN



2020-108

2020-109

2020-110

The Municipality of

Powaan

Council Meeting
Tuesday, April 21, 2020, at 7:00 pm
Council Chambers & Electronic Meeting, Powassan

Present: Peter Mclsaac, Mayor
Randy Hall, Deputy Mayor
Dave Britton, Councillor
Markus Wand, Councillor
Debbie Piekarski, Councillor

Staffl: Maureen Lang, CAO/Clerk-Treasurer and Terry Lang, IT Consultant
Presentations: None

Disclosure of Monetary Interest and General Nature Thereof: Councillor D.Piekarski e
Item 15 in Accounts Payable- donation re family member passing.

Moved by: R.Hall Seconded by: D. Britton
That the agenda of the Council meeting of April 21, 2020, be approved as amended:

Switch 9.1 & 9.2 first

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea

Councillor Randy Hall Yea

Councillor Markus Wand Yea

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea Carried
Moved by: D.Piekarski Seconded by: M. Wand

That the minutes of the Regular Council meeting of April 7, 2020, be adopted.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter McIsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea

Councillor Randy Hall Yea

Councitlor Markus Wand Yea

Counciller Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mcisaac Yea Carried
Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Britton

That the minutes from the Recreation committee meeting dated March 4, 2020, be
received.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea

Councillor Randy Hall Yea

Councillor Markus Wand Yea

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea Carried
0ATE OF
COUNCIL MTG.



Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Nay

Councillor Randy Hall Nay

Councillor Markus Wand Nay

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Nay

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Nay Defeated
2020-116 Moved by: R.Hall Seconded by: D. Britton

That the memo from Ben Mousseau, Protective Services, regarding backyard chicken
operations, be received.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councillor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yes Carried
2020-117 Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That By-law 2020-12, being a by-law to adopt the Water and Wastewater Budget
for 2020.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time on April 21, 2020.

To be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and adopted on May 5, 2020

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea

Councillor Randy Hall Yea

Councillor Markus Wand Yea

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea Carried
2020-118 Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: D. Britton

That By-law 2020-13, being a by-law to adopt the Water and Wastewater Rate
and Fee Schedule for 2020.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time on April 21, 2020.
To be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and adopted on May 5, 2020

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea

Councillor Randy Hall Yea

Councillor Markus Wand Yea

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea Carried
2020-119 Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski

That By-law 2020-14, being a by-law to provide for the registration, licensing
and regulation of dogs and regulation of kennels in the Municipality of Powassan.



2020-111

2020-112

2020-113

2020-114

2020-113

Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That the Regional Economic Development Board 2020 budget, be received.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councillor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea
Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall

That the Regional Economic Development board 2020 budget be approved at the $10,000
agreed commitment.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councitlor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Piekarski Nay
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea
Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: M. Wand

That the ACED recommendation for an Almaguin Delivery and Subsidy Program, be
received, and further, that we Council agree to proceed with the $500 contribution.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councillor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea
Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: M. Wand

That the 2™ Draft Budget for 2020, be received as amended.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councillor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Pickarski Yea
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea
Moved by: R.Hall Seconded by: M. Wand

That the Council salaries be approved as follows starting in 2020 and further, that the
cost of living percentage be applied each year to stay current.

Mayor $18,000
Councillor  $10,500

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried



2020-120

2020-121

2020-122

READ a FIRST and SECOND time on April 21, 2020.
To be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and adopted on May 5, 2020

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councillor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea
Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: R. Hall

That By-law 2020-15, being a by-law to allow and regulate the keeping of backyard
chickens in the Municipality of Powassan.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time on April 21, 2020, with changes.

To be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and adopted on May 5, 2020

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councillor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea
Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: M. Wand

That Council allows Rocky Ridge Aggregates request for the use of Loxton Line
during the load restriction season, at a full load capacity; and further, that if any
damage occurs to these sections of roadways during the restricted period due to
the use by Rocky Ridge Aggregates Inc., repairs will be made by them to bring
the road back to its current state at their expense.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Counciltor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Pigkarski Yea
Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea
Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: M. Wand

That the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing letter regarding Deployment of
Staff during a state of Emergency, be received.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea
Councillor Randy Hall Yea
Councillor Markus Wand Yea
Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea

Carried

Carried

Carried

Carried



2020-123 Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall
That the AMO-Covid update regarding Staff Reassignment flexibility, be received.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea

Councillor Randy Hall Yea

Councillor Markus Wand Yea

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea Carried
2020-124 Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: R. Hall

That the accounts payable listing reports dated April 3, 4, 7 & 17, 2020 in the total amount
of $298,485.79 be approved for payment.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councillor Dave Britton Yea

Councillor Randy Hall Yea

Councillor Markus Wand Yea

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea Carried
2020-125 Moved by: D. Britton Seconded by: D. Piekarski

That Council now adjourns at 9:43 p.m.

Recorded Vote: Requested by Peter Mclsaac

Councitlor Dave Britton Yea

Counciltor Randy Hall Yea

Councillor Markus Wand Yea

Councillor Debbie Piekarski Yea

Mayor Peter Mclsaac Yea Carried

Mayor CAO/Clerk-Treasurer



The Municipality of

Powaszan

TROUT CREEK COMMUNITY CENTRE BOARD MEETING
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 11, 2020

@7:00PM

TROUT CREEK COMMUNITY CENTRE

1, Call to Order

Motion 2020-13

Moved By: Karen Chadbourn Seconded By: Randy Hall
That the meeting be called to order at 6:58pm

PRESENT:
leff Eckensviller-Chair
Randy Hall-Councillor
Elva Taggart
Karen Chadbourn
Brian Eckensviller
Jeff Conrad
Trina Hummel-Co Chair
Tyson Hummel
Ted Hummel

ABSENT with regrets
Peter Mclsaac-Mayor

STAFF:
Dale jardine-Arena Manager
Terri-Anne Fricker-Bar/Food/Event Coordinator
Norma Conrad-Recording Secretary

Guest(s)
Nane

2. Disclosure of pecuniary interest and general thereof:
None



3. Approval of Agenda

Motion 2020-14

Moved By: Randy Hall Seconded By: Karen Chadbourn
That the agenda is approved.

4. Presentation(s)
None

5. Approval of Minutes

Motion 2020-15

Moved By: Brian Eckensviller Seconded By: Jeff Conrad
That the minutes of the previous meeting of February 5, 2020 be adopted.

6. Manager’s Report:

Arena Manager Dale Jardine advised that the lobby roof entrance has a split beam do to the weight of
the snow. He advised that the snow is cleaned off, and advised that Mark Martin-Chief Building Official
at the Municipality has been notified, and repairs will be done shortly.

Dale has reported that he has been approached by Shawn Stevenson about renting a space at the Trout
Creek Community Centre. In hopes to open up a skate sharpening business. There was a brief discussion.
The Board wants Dale to contact the Chief Building Official Mark Martin to come and inspect the room
to see what upgrades are needed before answering Shawn.

7. Bar/Food/Event Coordinator Report

Terri Anne Fricker report that the Carnival was a blast. There were a few things to report that had some
miscommunication with, the bar area for bartenders, cleaning upstairs hall, & bathroom issues all things
to be worked out before next year event. She also mentioned that it be would a good idea having more
security guards at future events.

Terri-Anne updated everyone on the up and coming Boat Show in April, she mentioned that the Maple
Syrup committee will be helping us promote our event through the media. She advised us that the show
may be cancelled with regards to Covid-19, fingers crossed that it doesn't.

Terri-Anne reported that she was in contact with Calvin Vollrath and has booked another event with him
for Saturday, September 12" and she is hoping to negotiate the same deal as last year. She mentioned
that Laverne Hummel will be helping out with advertising the event. During the last pub night surveys
were put out on the table to get responses back from people. Some of the responses she mentioned
were that they would like the pub night to go through the summer on a monthly basis, to have dinner &
dances, battle of the bands and meat draws, and also outside events such as horseshoe tournaments
and a baseball tournament,



8. Member’s Report
Tyson Hummel inquired why was there extra insurance put on the carnival activities after he noticed it

on the carnival summary expense sheet. The Recording Secretary advise it is a precaution which will
cover any liability issues if needed.

Jeff Eckensviller reported that he was talking to Mike Heasman the Arena Manager at the Sportsplex
about a structural report. After a brief discussion, they decided to combine the two arenas together for
one report which will make it more cost effective. One last decision was made that Chair-Jeff
Eckensviller and Arena Manager Dale Jardine will also review any quote(s) with Mike Heasman.

Jeff Eckensviller and Arena Manager Dale Jardine are in contact with the company Gym-Con concerning
an issue with the lobby flooring down stairs at the arena, and will report back at the next meeting with
an update.

9. Review Action Items

Summary Expense Sheet Winter Carnival 2020
A carnival expense summary sheet was added to the agenda package for members to view. There was a
brief discussion and suggestions were giving to improve certain areas that needed help for next year.

10. Business/Correspondence

10.1) Major Pian Update

Randy Hall began with a presentation on a twenty-five-year plan at the Community Centre. He
mentioned with the age of the community centre building is it cost effective to repair or just feasible of
replacing. He advised a feasible study needs to be done to determine the outcome. After a brief
discussion the Board has asked for it to be budgeted into the 2020 Budget hopefully for this year. This
will be deferred to the next meeting in April.

10.2) Budget

The Budget Report was added to the agenda for discussion and viewing purpose, Randy Hall will then
update our CAO Maureen Lang with any changes.

10.3) Nipissing Kennel Club Dog Show

Hall Rental Nipissing Kennel Club

A letter was added to the agenda from the Nipissing Kennel Club to discuss their annual rental in the fall.
They asked if they can negotiate the same rental price as 1ast year. After a brief discussion it was

decided to add a 2% increase for the 2020 rental. A motion was then passed.



Motion 2020-16

Moved By: Trina Hummel Seconded By: leff Conrad

The Trout Creek Community Centre Board recommends proposing to the Nipissing Kennel Club a 2%
increase from 2019 for their 2020 Dog Show Event.

11. Addendum
None

12. Accounts Payable

Motion 2020-17

Moved By: Karen Chadbourn Seconded By: Randy Hall

That the accounts payable listing in the total amount of $18,573.66 be approved for payment.

13. Notice of Meeting

Motion 2020-18

Moved By: Karen Chadbourn Seconded By: Brian Eckensviller
That the next meeting be scheduled for April 8, 2020 @ 7:00pm

14. Closed Session
None

15, Adjournment

Motion 2020-19

Moved By: Brian Eckensviller Seconded By; Trina Hurmmel
That the committee adjourned at 9:12p.m.

Chair 7 Recording Secretary



A regular meeting of the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit was
held on Wednesday, February 26, 2020, at 345 Oak Street West, North Bay, Ontario.

PRESENT:

Nipissing District:
Central Appointee
Central Appointee
Central Appointee
Eastern Appointee
Western Appointee
Parry Sound District:
North Eastern Appointee
South Eastern Appointee
Waestern Appointee
Public Appointees:

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

Medical Officer of Health/Executive Officer
Master of Public Health Student

REGRETS:

Central Appointee — Nipissing District
Central Appointee — Nipissing District
Provincial Appointee

Provincial Appointee

RECORDER:
Management Administrative Assistant

1.0 CALLTO ORDER

Nancy Jacko
Scott Robertson
Tanya Vrebosch
Dean Backer
Dan Roveda

Blair Flowers
Marianne Stickland
Don Brisbane (via tefeconference)

Dr. Chirico
Dr. Carol Zimbalatti

Dave Butti
Stuart Kidd
Gary Guenther
Mike Poeta

Sheri Beaulieu__

Nancy Jacko, Board of Health Chairperson, called the Board of Health meeting to order at 5:22

p.m.

Don Brisbane joined the Board of Health meeting via teleconference.

2.0 APROVAL OF THE AGENDA

The agenda for the February 26, 2020, Board of Health meeting was reviewed and the following

motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2020/02/01 *Backer/Vrebosch

Be It Resolved, that the Board of Health Agenda, dated February 26, 2020, be approved, as

presented.

7 OF :
D HBILTC. W@%S[
AGENDA
re?ns QK" \




Minutes: Board of Health
Date: February 26, 2020

“Carried”

3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION
There were no conflicts of interest declared.

4.0 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

4.1 Board of Health Minutes - January 22, 2020

The minutes from the Board of Health meeting held on January 22, 2020, were reviewed and
the following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2020/02/02 *Flowers/Stickland

Be It Resolved, that the minutes from the Board of Health meeting held on January 22, 2020, be
approved as presented.

“Carried”

5.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Date: April 24, 2020

Time: To be determined

Location: Nipissing Room, 345 Oak Street West, North Bay
6.0 BUSINESS ARISING

There was nothing under Business Arising

7.0 REPORT OF THE MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH

The Report of the Medical Officer of Health dated February 18, 2020, was presented to the
Board of Health for information purposes.

Additional comments were provided to the Board on the COVID-19 situation, Public Health
Modernization, and the alPHa 2020 Winter Symposium.

8.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS
8.1 Personnel Policy, Employee and Labour Relations Committee

A Personnel Policy, Employee and Labour Relations Committee meeting was held prior to the
Board of Health meeting; the following motion was read:

e T T R
Health Unit
i' iif'\'*

B-G-009-001 Surngu de sante Page2of 5



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: February 26, 2020

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2020/02/03 *Vrebosch/Stickland

Whereas, Ontario Nurses’ Association {ONA) collective agreement and the Ontario Public
Service Employee Union’s (OPSEU} collective agreement expired on March 31, 2020.

Now Therefore Be It Resolved, that on the recommendation of the Personnel Policy,
Labour/Employee Relations Committee that the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound
District Health Unit appoint Nancy Jacko and Scott Robertson as back-up if needed, as Board of
Health representative(s) on the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit Negotiation
Committee for 2020; and

Furthermore Be It Resolved, that on the recommendation of the Personnel Policy, Employee and
Labour Relations Committee that the Board of Health approve remuneration for this activity in
accordance with Board of Health policy #B-F-004 — Remuneration, Board of Health Members.

“Carried”
9.0 CORRESPONDENCE

Board of Health correspondence listed for the February 26, 2020, meeting is made available for
review by Board members in the Board of Health online portal.

10.0 NEW BUSINESS
10.1 Board of Health Policies

Board of Health policies require review and renewal once every two years, with the exception
of four Personnel policies which require annual review and renewal.

The following Board of Health policies were brought forward for review and approval:

o Code of Conduct —- B-G-010

» Confidentiality of Information — B-G-004

o Confidentiality Statement and Agreement Form — BF-G-004-01

e Conflict of Interest — B-G-003

o Annual Conflict of Interest Declaration Form — BF-G-003-01

o Subsequent Conflict of Interest Declaration Form — BF-G-003-02
In Camera Meeting Proceedings — B-G-015
Information Process for Meetings of Board of Health and Committees — B-G-013
Notice and Attendance of Public at Board of Health and Committee Meetings — B-G-021
Recognizing Community Partners — B-G-014
Responding to Complaints Received by Board of Health Members — B-G-016

L L el Jee S

BT e pen P P
Health Unit
S A ALY N )

B-G-009-001 Eureay ds sanre Page 3 of 5



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: Feb_t_'uary 26, 2020

The following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #BOH/2020/02/04 *Flowers/Backer

Be It Resolved, that the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit
approve the following Board of Health policies and related forms that were up for review:
® Revisions to Code of Conduct - B-G-010
® Revisions to Confidentiality of Information — B-G-004
Addition of a new form, Confidentiality Statement and Agreement — BF-G-004-01
Revision to Conflict of Interest ~ B-G-003
Scheduled review of Annual Conflict of interest Declaration form — BF-G-003-01
Scheduled review of Subsequent Conflict of interest Declaration form — BF-G-003-02
Revisions to In Camera Meeting Proceedings ~ B-G-015
* Revision to Information Process for Meetings of Board of Health and Committees — B-G-
013
* Revision to Notice and Attendance of Public at Board of Health and Committee Meetings
—B-G-021
* Revision to Recognizing Community Partners — B-G-014
* Revision to Responding to Complaints Received by Board of Health Members — B-G-016

“Carried”

10.2  Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) 2020 Winter Symposium Report
A written report by the Board of Health Chairperson on the workshops attended, the update
provided by the Chief Medical Officer of Health, and presentations provided at the alPHa 2020
Winter Symposium was included for this agenda item.

There was a discussion expanding on the information provided in the written report.

10.3  District of Parry Sound Municipal Association Spring Meeting Invitation

Registration is now open for the May 1, 2020, District of Parry Sound Municipal Association
meeting to be hosted by the Township of McMurrich/Monteith at the Sprucedale Community
Centre.

The following motion was read:

Board of Health Resolution #80H/2020/02/05 *Robertson/Stickland

Now Therefore Be it Resolved, that the Board of Health for the North Bay Parry Sound District
Health Unit authorizes attendance of Board of Health members at the District of Parry Sound

flealth Unit
Jwy
B-G-009-001 Burcau ds samee Paged of §



Minutes: Board of Health
Date: February 26, 2020

Municipal Association (DPSMA)} 2020 Spring meeting on May 1, 2020, at the Sprucedale
Community Centre in the Township of McMurrich/Monteith; and

Further Be It Resolved, that expenses related to attending the DPSMA 2020 Spring meeting be
paid in accordance with the Board of Health Remuneration Policy #B8-F-004.

“Carried”

11.0 IN CAMERA

There was no in camera session.
12.0 ADJOURMENT

Having no further business, the Board of Health Chairperson adjourned the Board of Health
meeting at 6: 25 p.m.

Original Signed by Nancy Jacko 2020/04/22
Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson Date (yyyy/mm/dd)
Original Signed by Sheri Beaulieu e 2020/04/22
Sheri Beaulieu, Recorder Date (yyyy/mm/dd)

Health Unit
R 8L Yy

8-G-009-001 Burass Sosants Page 5 of 5



2019 ANNUAL REPORT

i v ; ; 1 AR Y e

'5-'!! A, S W S A

E A S ‘hq SRR IR LA ] T T i et
ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT




ACED 2019 REPORT

Introduction

2019 was a milestone year for economic development efforts in the Almaguin Highlands Region, The
formation of the Almaguin Community Economic Development (ACED) Board and subseguent
department has created a solid foundation for the execution of the strategic direction in the 2018
Almaguin Highlands Regional Economic Development Strategic Plan (RED Plan). Throughout 2019, The
ACED Board have established ACED as a regional shared service and built a fully staffed department
under a three-year partnership agreement.

This first annual ACED Report is intended to establish a baseline for regional economic development that
will be continuously increased throughout the following years as the staff and board members work
towards building economic capacity and economic growth that will benefit all regional partners. ACED is
currently resourced through partnership contributions from 10 municipalities, the Almaguin Highlands
Chamber of Commerce and several other major partners. ACED continues to build momentum through
mutually beneficial partnership efforts with a focus on pursuing additional regional partners.

ACED is cammitted to ensuring the economic and sociol prosperity of the region. Our
gbjective is to develon our environment by creoting and growing strong portnerships
between municipalities, husinesses, community groups ond residents.

ACED Department Development

The ACED Board was initially formed in March of 2019 with 11 members from the former Central
Almaguin Economic Development Association (CAEDA) and the Burk’s Falls & Area Community Economic
Development Committee {BACED). The Board developed the ACED Terms of Reference, shared service
agreements and position descriptions for the ACED Department Staffing Model. The department was
initially staffed by a Community Economic Development officer with administrative support from
Armour Township. Armour Township serves as the administrating municipality for ACED as per the
shared services agreement.

Throughout Q3 and Q4, ACED proceeded to fill the positions outlined in the ACED staffing model. The
Communications & Marketing Officer joined the team in July; In October, due to efficiencies in the
existing CAEDA funding agreement, the CAEDA EDO was reassigned to support ACED program delivery.
The Director of Economic Development was hired in November. Below is an outline of ACED Staff
mermbers

S g

Dave Gray, Ec. D Courtney Metcalf Clara Stead .
Plans, organizes and delivers Promotes economic. Supports all marketmg and
economic development development in the region by communications efforts of ACED
programs and services to supporting the delivery of and delivers the Digital Main
achieve optimum use of human  programs and services to Street Service Squad Program to
and financial resources. regional stakeholders and businesses throughout the '

businesses. region.

l1|Page



I T o P T e e B T L T el Rl 0 T TR D W, Taraa I T Sadkan TR ACED 2019 REDORT

2019 ACED Activities Overview

Throughout the development of the ACED Board and Department, economic development services
continued to be delivered to regional stakeholders. The following results set a baseline for future
performance and are expected to increase in 2020 due to having a full complement of staff. Activities
are classified under the following categories:

* Core Activities: Activities that occur as a part of the regular ACED business rhythm. These
include regularly scheduled activities as well as unscheduled core service delivery (business
interactions, support requests, media interactions etc.).

* Regional Projects: Projects that are developed based on regional needs and identified impact
areas identified in the 2018 Almaguin Regional Economic Development Strategic Plan.

* Marketing Activities: Promotional activities designed to create internal and external awareness
of Almaguin’s assets, initiatives and other features.

* Events: Events include both small- and large-scale events targeted towards a variety of
audiences.

Core Activities Qverview

2019 Business Interactions Overview (Not including Digital Main Street)
Business interactions by 2019 were generally driven by in bound calls directly from clients and referrals
from municipalities, support organizations and other businesses.

o I} £1Broad Business Interactions Overview

Total Business Interactions 78

Total Unique Business Clients 44
Follow up meetings/interactions 34

Actual Start Ups 6

Actual Expansions 7

Estimated Jobs Created 10

Support Organization Referrals 18

Total Private Sector Investment Supported* $753 250

Jobs maintained 13
Jobs Created 6
*Reflects active/approved investment files only, several other clients are currently
awaiting approval in 2020.

2lRPage



ACED 2019 REPORT

Figure 1: interactions by Type

# Start Up  » Expansion Genera Developer = Succession = Follow Ups

figure 2: Interactions by Location

Sundndge
South River
Ryerson

Powassan

Perry HEH 1
MchMurrich / Monteith  EEESE 2

Magnetawan ER 1

Joly EE 1

Burks Falls

Ballantyne KM 1

Armaur

Business Interaction Summary:

Total business interactions have increased Y.0.Y .over 2018 results by approximately 33%. Interactions
are expected to increase in 2020 due to community outreach during industry specific business retention
and expansion efforts as well as other industry specific projects. Additional business interactions and
ACED presence in each municipality can be seen in the Digital Main Street Results.

3|Page



e T YT T S i e A LRI BRI Lo it i — PLisipteicn ACED 2019 REPORT

Core Communications Overview
There are several types of core communications that are represented in monthly reporting. The goals
with all forms of communications are threefold:

1. To maintain an active presence with all stakeholders to share and gather information;

2. To learn about new programs and services that will serve regional stakeholder
organizations and/or businesses;

3. To actively seek partnership opportunities.

Figure 3. Cammunications Overvigw
Core Communication Type Amount Description it
Organization Meeting 36 Key organizations: Municipalities, NECO, Explorer’s
Edge, Burk’s Falls DDT, Almaguin Highlands Health
Centre, Blue Sky, HON, Almaguin Chamber, Digital
Main Street, Event partnerships,

Partnership Opportunities 22 See below

Regional Support Letters 6 Includes support in principle for external projects.

Media Inquiries & coverage 10 Includes project specific coverage and general story
comments

Celebrate Almaguin Episodes 20 The Bay 88.7FM

Funding Application Support 10
Public Sector 7
Private Sector 3
Applications Lled 5 FedNor CHNO Phase 2, Digital Main Street, NOHFC
Internship, Almaguin Harvest Spin, Explorer’s Edge
Partnership Program
Applications Supported 5 Burks Falls DT Development, Private Sector

Partnership Opportunities Overview

Maintaining an active presence within the region, specifically with stakeholder and supportive
organizations, often yields partnership opportunities for partnership projects that benefit the Almaguin
region. Below is a brief summary of key partnership highlights:

Partnership Project Support Type  Description

PSMA Partnership In-Kind Partnership Presentation with Parry Sound EDO

Cyber Security Workshop Financial / IX Business Event partnership with Blue Sky Net

AHHC Doctor Recruitment In-Kind

Almaguin ED Gala Financial / IK

Networks of Excellence Event Financial Partnership event with multiple support
organizations.

Tastes of Almaguin Event Financial Partnership event with Enviro Centre

Powassan Business Symposium  Financial / 1K Partnership event with Powassan

Discovery Routes Trails Map Financial / IK Partnership project with Discovery Routes

Explorer’s Edge Snowmobile Financial / (K Partnership formed to be deployed in 2020

Partnership

4';—’.];':1."



BB I e T 1 A W D e T T L G L 1 T T TR T T e (e T I R R L T e e S TR T P T L B ACED 20]9 Rmm

ivedia Coverage Highlights

ACED has seen a significant increase in media inquiries and coverage opportunities throughout 2019
which have helped highlight key economic issues, initiatives and events. Their print coverage combined
with on-line distribution have assisted in keeping a focus on the ACED Partner’'s commitments and
contributions to economic development. Relationships with local reporters and columnists continue to
grow; reporters are actively reaching out to the ACED team for comments and good news stories.

Figure 4: Print Media Highlights

ARTICLE DATE FEATURE SRS, R S
JAN, 28, 2019 “Almaguin region’s economic development teams gearing up for merger”
FEB 25, 2019 “Almaguin’s Big Top Productions wants to help communities thrive”

MAR 29, 2019 “Almaguin tourism sector may make gains from Porter Airlines Partnership”
0CT 15, 2019 “Driving the region forward in a way that makes sense for Almaguin”

OCT 17, 2019 “Taste of Almaguin: A farm to table event...”

DEC 5, 2019 “Shop Almaguin: Support your friends, neighbours, econamy”

JAN. 16, 2020 | “Can you telf me how to get to Digital Main Street”

In addition to the article coverage, ACED has advertised several key initiatives and events in the
Almaguin News which have helped boister interest and attention with businesses and residents across
the region.

Regicnal Projects

ACED Department Development (2019 Wark Plan Item RP1)
The 2018 RED Plan identified several key considerations and objectives regarding the formation of a
regional economic development organization. The table below illustrates these objectives:

Ohjective State of Completion

Establish ACED Board Completed (March 2019)

Establish Terms of Reference Adopted (May 2019)

Create Position Descriptions for staff Completed. Director of Economic Development
Hired (Nov. 2019)

ACED Agreement Launch Completed {Oct. 2019)

Establish Physical Location Completed {April 2019)

Manufacturing BR&E (2019 Workplan item RP2)
The Manufacturing BR&E has been expanded to include both industrial and forestry related businesses.
The project will serve as follow up to the 2016 Business Retention and Expansion Project and seek to

reconnect with regional industry partners. The project planning began in Q4 of 2019 and will continue
in 2020,

Broadband Strategy and Advocacy {2019 Workplan ltem RP3)
In 2019, ACED undertook several activities to understand the process and landscape for advocating for
broadband internet enhancements. Objectives included case studies of broadband expansion projects,

S|Fage



T LA i LT A O AT T L5 . | LS DT e T wemen — ACED 2019 REPORT

identifying available coverage area information, understanding information gaps, connecting with
broadband development stakeholders and reacting to advocacy efforts. Figure 5 provides a list of
activities undertaken by ACED.

Figure 5 Broadband Activities Overview
Objective Activity _ ~iln
Case Study Connect with Eastern Ontario Regional Network regarding their highly
successful expansion effort (See March CEDO Report)
Research Coverage Areas Connect with BlueSky Net to review BAEMAP information for Almaguin

Area

Partnership Efforts Promote connectednorth.ca website and promote online speed tests
throughout Almaguin Region

Advocacy Efforts Support BlueSky Net's application to the CRTC Broadband Fund

Solicit support requests to Almaguin municipalities

Organize BlueSky information presentation to ACED

Partner with BlueSky Net to participate in Broadband Expansion RFP
Review.

Accommodations [nventory (2019 Workplan Item RP4)

ACED created a regional accommodations database that consists of all known accommodations
providers throughaut the Almaguin Region. The database contains a variety of information ranging over
16 categories. The information will be used to create a more user friendly Almaguin Accommodations
Directory {2019 Work Plan ltem RP5) that can be both hosted on the Almaguin Highlands Tourism
website and in print. in addition, the inventory will be used to help establish stranger relationships with
accommodations operators.

nvestment Properties Asset Inventory {Work Plan item RP7)
ACED is currently in the process of compiling the asset inventory of unused/underused municipal
investment properties as well as available commercialfindustrial lands for lease and sale.

Digital Main Street Project (2019 Workplan Item SP1)

The Digital Main Street (DMS} Project has been a major flagship project for ACED in 2019. The
Communications & Marketing Officer (CMQ), with support from the Director of Economic Development
(DED) have established a strong presence within the local business community. Figure 6 illustrates some
of the highlight statistics and impactful results;

Figure & Chgital Maimn Street Key Statistics

Total Businesses Contacted 165

Total DMS Businesses “Opt-Ins”* 70
Total DMS Visits {including follow-ups) 300
Total Grant Eligible Businesses 36
Total Grant Applications (to Jan. 2020) 17
Grants Approved (To Jan. 2020)** 3
Businesses completed video training 19

6|Page



B ACED 2019 REPORT

* 4 Businesses existed in the DMS Program prior to the Service Squad launch.
** Many applications are still under review foflowing the Jan. 10 application deadline.

The CMO has assisted a wide variety of businesses with on-line presence improvements. DMS
Businesses accounted for approximately 50% of businesses who opted in to receive DMS services from
the CMO. Figure 7 illustrates the most commonly delivered services (note that some interactions may
not be tracked if they assisted with uncommeon digital support requests).

Figure 7: Digital Moin Street Service Types

DMS Support Types by Occurence

VIDEO TRAINING SUPFORT
TWITTER

INSTAGRAM

FACEBOOK

E-COMMERCE [}
EMAR MARKETING  [iiaR R 1]

WEBSITE SUPPORT | S P

GOOGLE 360

GOOGLE MY BUSINESS

TR 52

Regional Marketing & Events

Almaguin Economic Development Gala (2019 Waorkplan Iitem RM1)

The Third Annual Economic Development Gala built upon the success of previous years through
partnership investments from key stakeholders throughout the region. Keynote Speaker Terry O’Reilly
from the popular “Under the Influence” radio show on CBC Radio One helped to draw a large audience
that showcased Aimaguin’s economic development progress. Further details can be seen in Figure 8.

Figure 8: 2019 Events Overview

Event Date Est. Attendance ACED Total
Invest. Invest.
Cyber Security Presentation (CS2*) May 14 12 $150 $500
Almaguin Economic Development Gala  Oct. 3 140 $2500 $12 535
Networks of Excellence Event (CS2*)  Oct. 16 40 $293 $793
Taste of Almaguin Event  Oct. 26 Results Unknown $1000 Unknown
Powassan Business Symposium (CS2*)  Nov. 13 15 $180 $500

*CS2 signifies 2019 Workplan item CS2

7| Page



ACED 2019 REPORT

2013 Almaguin Volunteer Event {2019 Work Plan Item RM2)

ACED's focus on delivering a volunteer recruitment event has been shifted to 2020 to allow time to
assist volunteer organizations in preparing to recruit. ACED Staff did however support several local
community groups with marketing efforts and volunteering through direct one on one consultations.

2019/2020 Visitor Guide Support {2019 Work Plan Item RP3)

ACED Staff supported the development of the 2019/2020 event calendar as well as distribution efforts in
the Central Almaguin Area. ACED also advertised in the guide under with a full page add that replaced
previous CAEDA and BACED ads. Throughout Q4 of 2019, the ACED Team redeveloped a regional
business directory that will be made available to the 2020/2021 Visitor Guide Committee.

Shop Local Campaigns (2019 Work Plan Item RP4)

ACED Staff executed the 2019 Wrap Up Almaguin Shop Local Campa ign throughout the holiday season
with a stronger focus on social media driven engagement, Previous campaigns involved a lot of input
from business owners (ballot draws, coupon redemption, gift cards) which created unnecessary stress.
Additionally, these initiatives required a significant amount of time and financial contributions from
economic development staff. Below is a brief comparison of initiatives:

[nitiative Total Cost Businesses Inv. SM Reach SM Engagement
2019 Wrap Up {4 Weeks)  $800 33 31413 1774
2018 Feast in Alm. 54600 26 95031 2654
2018 Wrap up Alm. $2652 35 54390 3786

Positive Aspects

® All businesses, no matter the industry or location, were included and had the opportunity to
participate. The campaign was all-inclusive with no buy-in from businesses.

* It was alow-cost campaign, with total expenses not exceeding $800.

* Social media advertising and print advertising strongly conveyed the importance and benefits of
shopping local, while promoting individual businesses.

Negative Aspects

* Social media engagement was iower than both Wrap Up Almaguin 2018 and Feast in Almaguin
2018.

* Business participation was lower than previous campaigns, because there was no ownership of
the program from the businesses.

ACED Website and Social Media Accounts

ACED 5taff have merged both BACED and CAEDA websites in to the ACED website under the URL
Https://www.investAimaguin.ca. Both former URL links for BACED and CAEDA now forward to the ACED
website. In addition, the former BACED Facebook social media profiles have be transitioned to reflect

8|P(—=i-:L'



LT R T T S I P R O P TR T e I el B e L N N I et bR e . ACED 20"9 RPORT

the ACED brand. Having a dedicated Communications and Marketing Officer has proven hugely
beneficial in terms of online presence development. The website is still cansidered to be ‘under
construction’ but remains live to users with a variety of content. Major website and social media
improvements include:

* Full ACED conversion including *» Created Twitter, Instagram and

theme colours and branding; text LinkedIn accounts.
references to BACED and all » Created 24 unique instagram posts
contact information. and gained 85 followers to date.

* Added 3 blog posts / content » Created 44 Tweets on Twitter and
pieces for region (RMS5 action maintains an active presence.
item). » Converted BACED Facebook page

* Added all municipalties to to ACED specific page and grown
municpal services tabs. (other following by 10%.
municipal information to come) « Revamped Facebook page

¢ Added Chamber of Commerce information etc.
page.

» Added community groups and
volunteer opportunities

» Maintained all plugins and features

9|'r‘:|;1|:\



ALMAGCUIN COMMUMNITY ECCINDMll‘.‘. CIEVEI_DF'MENT
30x 533 - 56 Ontano St Burk's Falls ON. PGA 1

{765)571-1564 | direclor@investalmaguin ca

April 27, 2020

ACED Presence Report
Municipality of Powassan

Digital Main Street (DMS) Report
Category Total Tracked Details
Blitz Visits* 37 Performed by the Director and
Communications & Marketing Officer in
Powassan and Trout Creek
Email & Phone Contacts 42 Businesses outside of Downtown
Total DMS Registered 15 Businesses who chose to register on the
Digital Main Street Web Site.
Completed Video Training 7
Follow Up Visits 27
Applied for Grant 5
Received Grant 1
Total Businesses Served 13
* Not all businesses that were visited were open at the time of the visit. Businesses that were
not open received a follow up email or phone call.

Main Service Types:
The following is an overview of the types of services that were provided to businesses through
the program, or through non-program site visits:

Support Type Businesses Support Type Businesses
Google My Business 13 Social Media

Website 10 Facebook 12

360 Degree Imaging 9 Instagram 11

Email Marketing 3 Twitter 1
E-Commerce 1

Events Overview

Event Date Support Type

Almaguin ED Gala Oct. 3, 2019 Organized & hosted @ 250 Clark

w/ Terry O’Reilly

Business Rumble Oct. 23, 2016 Digital Main Street booth & Attendance

Powassan Business Symposium  Nov. 13,2019  Marketing contribution & Attendance
In addition to the events hosted in Powassan, Powassan businesses are invited to other event
hosted throughout the region such as the Networks of Excellence Event held in Sundridge on
October 16" 2019,

DATE OF
couscLmie Ma ‘)’/QO
RGEHEA ol
ER £ NERES




ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 Ontario St Biwk's Falls ON. POA 1C0

(705)571-1564 | director@:nvestalmaguin.ca

RED Plan Projects & Other Support

Investment Property Inventory
https://investalmaguin.caflease-and-investment-properties/

The Investment Property Inventory is a region-wide collection of rental and lease properties
geared at providing investors and site selectors with a regional view of properties within
commercial and industrial zones. MLS and Realtor.ca will be scanned regularly to update listings
across the region.

The page currently has two listings from Powassan for sale. An ACED team member will be
returning to Powassan and Trout Creek after COVID 19 to scan for leas opportunities.

Agricultural and Culinary Stakeholder Engagement Strategy

Building off the Feast in Almaguin and Shop in Almaguin initiatives, the Stakeholder
Engagement Strategy is geared to identify, map and connect agricultural and culinary
businesses throughout the region. The strategy will be used to encourage producers and
culinary businesses to participate in local events, help with product and initiative development
and increase food tourism throughout the region. There is currently a request for proposal
active to attract qualified consultants to support the development of the strategy.

Direct Business Support

The ACED team provides consultation services directly to businesses throughout the Almaguin
Region to support start-ups, expansions and general information requests. In 2019, ACED Team
members had three consultation visits in Powassan to support business expansion {not
including Digital Main Street activity.

COVID-19 Activities

The ACED Team has maintained communication with many businesses in Powassan to promote
accessibility to ACED Services as well as provide information and access to critical government
programs as they come available.

The ACED Team is currently analyzing survey results from the Almaguin COVID-19 Business
Outreach Survey. In total, 103 businesses throughout the Region participated (16 from
Powassan). 40 businesses in Powassan were called directly by ACED Team members and many
others were emailed.



e e
ALMAGUIN COMMLINITY ECOMNOMIC DEVELOPMEMNT
Box 533 - 56 Oniarin St Burk's Falls ON. POA 100

{703)571-1564 director@investalmaguin ca

May 1%, 2020

Almaguin Highlands COVID-19 Business Outreach Survey
Final Report

Survey tntroduction

The COVID-19 Pandemic is presenting a wide range of challenges to communities of all sizes
across the province, the country and the world. As control measures remain in effect to
mitigate the spread of the virus, local economies continue to face increasing challenges as
businesses are forced to close, alter their business deliver models and otherwise handle the
disruptions that they are facing. Understanding these challenges and disruptions is paramount

when looking at developing strategies to help mitigate the many risks that businesses and
communities are facing.

Throughout the first three weeks of April 2020, Almaguin Community Economic Development
conducted the voluntary Almaguin COVID-19 Business Qutreach Survey with the goal of
understanding specific chailenges that businesses are facing. This information provides ACED,
its partners and municipalities with current information that can be used to:

* develop strategies for provide support to Almaguin businesses;

* advocate on behalf of our businesses to senior levels of government; and

* develop community and economic recovery measures.

In total, 103 businesses completed the survey, which accounts for approximately 16 percent
of total businesses throughout the region.

Respondents by sector:
Services (General/Professional} 22% Retail 19%
Accommodations 17% Manufacturing 12%
Food & Drink 10% Agriculture & Forestry 8%
Real Estate 7% Tourism, Art & Rec. 5%

25 OF :
couscLura | [Y)

AGENIDA
EM # % 2

s
3

W




ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONDMIC DEVELOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 Ontano St Burk's Falls ON. POA 1C0

(705)571-1564 | director@investaimaguin ca

What the Survey Says: Key Highlights Summary {Quantitative Data)

A copy of the full survey summary for the region has been provided with this report for
reference purposes (See Appendix A). In addition to the regional summary, community specific
profiles have been created for municipalities with more than 5 responses; these profiles will be
sent directly to municipal staff for inclusion in their council agenda packages.

Key Highlights:

> 48.04% of respondents (49 businesses) indicated a need to ay-off staff or and
expectation of having to lay off staff.
o 19 of the 49 businesses are concerned with losing long term employees who may
seek work elsewhere,

> 63.63% of respondents (65 businesses) predicted reaching a financial crisis point
within 6 months.
o 43.13% (44 businesses) will reach a financial crisis point within 3 months (or by
the end of June).

» 38.83% of respondents (40 businesses) are concerned about of having to close
permanently.

o 20 of the 40 businesses are located on main streets or in downtown areas.

o 25 of the 40 businesses expect their financial crisis point to occur within 3
months.,

o All tourism, arts and recreation respondents indicated concerns about having to
close permanently.

o 70% of food and drink respondents indicated concerns about having to close
permanently.

»# 79.61% of respondents (82 businesses) are forecasting an annual revenue loss of over
25%.
o 47.57% (49 businesses) are forecasting over 50%.
o 37 of the 82 businesses are concerned with having to close permanently.,
o 41 of 82 have already laid off staff or expect to.

» Major problems businesses are facing, or expect to face:

o Loss of regular clients/customers §_3%_'(_6_§ businesses)
o Major Revenue Loss AR 78% (81 businesses)
o Loss of long-term employees 21 % {22 businesses)

o Loss of major suppliers 31% (32 businesses}



ANCED

ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 Ontano St. Burk's Falls ON. POA 1C0

(705)571-1584 [/ drector@investalmaguin ca

What Business Owners Said: Comments Highlights Summary

The survey included several comment sections aimed at gathering qualitative and opinion
based information from business owners. The key highlights provided below represent
common themes discussed throughout the survey.

» Question 3: Due to the current situation with COVID-19, have you had to / do you expect
to lay off any employees?
o If yes, have you considered the Wage Subsidy, Work Sharing, Business Loans or
other financial benefit programs? {57 businesses responded)

35% of question respondents {20) had already looked in to support
programs.
* 22% of question respondents (12 businesses) indicated that they
have, or intend to, access benefits.
* 11% of question respondents (6 businesses) claimed to not be
eligible for current programs.

» Question 4: If you are concerned about the future of your business during the COVID-19
Lockdown, when do you predict your business will reach its financial crisis point?
o Please provide additional information regarding the urgency of the treat. (30
businesses responded)

43% of question respondents (13 businesses) have immediate concerns
with keeping up with overhead expenses.

27% of question respondents expressed concerns with spring and
summer businesses. Some citing booking cancellations, quiet phone fines
and pressure to return deposits. Other cite long term concerns if peak
tourism season is lost.

~ Question 7: What additional problems do you predict may happen for your business?
o Please provide and additional details. (46 businesses responded)

20% of question respondents (13 businesses) reported concerns with
critical supply chain elements including: supplier businesses closing,
delivery company disruptions, competition for supplies from suppliers.
11% of question respondents (5 businesses) reported challenges with
making or keeping up with capital investments and assets. Comments
include: needs to pay staff to maintain capital assets, inability to make
investments to upkeep assets.

18% of question respondents (12 businesses) elaborated on loss of sales,
bookings or clients. Comments included: inability to get building permits
to complete planned work, loss of seasonal accommodations bookings
and deposit refunds, having to sell agricultural produce at bulk rates to
avoid spoilage.

> Questions 8, 9 and 10 — See Appendix B - Question 8 and 9 Support Request Comments.



ALMAGUIN COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 Ontario St. Burk's Falls ON. POA 1C0

(705)571-1564 [ direclor@investalmaguin ca

What can we do to help? Initial Recommendations for Municipalities and Partners
The ACED Team is continuing to work with the data from the survey to establish a support
strategy and specific action items that can support the business community and {ocal
economies. The following is a list of several action items that can be considered in the
immediate future at the time of issuing this report. Additional strategy elements and action
items are expected to be developed as stakeholders process survey information.

Friority Action ltem Recommendations:

1. Establishment of a regional economic recavery task force.

Survey results indicate that there is a significant amount of risk to the regional economy.
Impacts include potential major businesses losses, further downtown core vacancies,
major seascnal business disruptions and more.

a. The task force should include, but not be limited to representatives from:
municipalities, the Almaguin Highlands Chamber of Commerce, supportive
organizations and ACED.

b. Parties interested in participating in the task force should connect directly
with Dave Gray, Director of Economic Development via email:
director@investalmaguin.ca.

2. Promotion of the COVID-19 Support web page: https://investalmagui.ca/covid-19.
Throughout the survey process, businesses expressed having challenges with finding
information about support programs and general information. It is recommended that
all municipalities share a link to this page on their municipal homepages.

Low cost / no cost action items:

1. Add the survey results on the agenda for any upcoming council and/or board meetings
and encourage discussions regarding the implementation of support and
communications action items.

2. Communicate regularly with businesses, members and any other audiences within
your sphere of influence regarding any actions you are taking to support them.

Many businesses expressed great appreciation for having been contacted directly by
team members. Many also expressed concerns with not knowing about tax deferrals
that had been put in place.

a. Consider reaching out to businesses or members via email or phone as is
possible. Simple expressions of support or providing useful information are
good best practices.

3. Consider using local social media to provide messages of support or encouragement.
In conjunction with direct communication, providing encouragement to businesses can
often require little effort but send a big message. Feature and tag businesses from your
community, recommend that people visit their page and leave a positive review are best
practices,



ALMAGUIN COMMLUINITY ECONDMIC DEVELOPMENT
Box 533 - 56 Onlario St. Burk's Falls ON. POA 1C0

(705)571-1564 [ dwector@investaimaguin.ca

4. Continue sharing all information regarding programs, new program details and other
COVID-19 specific support measures with colleagues and stakeholder groups.
Much of the information that is featured on the COVID-19 page has been provided from
within ACED’s network. Information for internal emails, webinars, virtual meetings and
other sources is most useful when it is issued quickly.

Moving forward

The ACED Team is continuing to process all comments collected in the survey and following up
with businesses who have identified that they are facing immediate closure risks. During the
analyzation process, should any further trends emerge, they will be communicated as soon as
possible. Further reports regarding ‘red flag’ issue follow ups will be provided in regular
reporting cycles.

Depending on the length of the mandated closures, there may be a need for follow up surveys
or micro-polls. The establishment of an economic recovery task force will be a great asset to
determining measures that would best provide support to businesses and other stakeholders.

Should any follow up information regarding the information in this report or gathered through
the survey process can be directed to Dave Gray via email: director@investalmaguin.ca.




Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q1 Please provide the following information:

Answered: 103 Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Name 98.06%
Company 99.03%
Address 0.00%
Address 2 0.00%
Municipality 100.00%
State/Province 0.00%
ZIPIPostal Code 0.00%
Country 0.00%
Email Address 95.15%
Phone Number 0.00%

1/10

101

102

98



ANSWER CHOICES
=5

5-15

16-30

31+
TOTAL

Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q2 How many employees do you have?

Answered: 100

Skipped: 3

515

16-30

0% 10% 20%

305

40% 504

2/10

6l T0%

RESPONSES
67.00%

27.00%
4.00%

2.00%

8%

90% 100%

67

27

100



Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q3 Due to the current situation with COVID-19, have you had to / do you
expect to lay-off any employees?

Yes {25)

s (5-10)

Yas (10+)

0% 10%

ANSWER CHOICES

N
Yes (>5)
Yes {5-10)

Yes (10+)
TOTAL

0%

Answered: 102

0%

0% 50%

3/10

Skipped: 1

60% TO%

RESPONSES
51.96%

35.29%
9.80%

2.94%

80%

90% 100%

53

36

10

102



Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q4 If you are concerned about the future of your business during the
COVID-19 lockdown, when do you predict your business will reach its
financial crisis point?

Answered: 102 Skipped 1

=1 moanth

1-3 months

3-6 months

6-9 months

Other {please
specify)

Qe 104 0% J0%

ANSWER CHOICES
> 1 month

1-3 months

3-6 months

6-9 months

Other (please specify}
TOTAL

£0% 50% 60% T BO%

RESPONSES
7.84%

35.29%
20.59%
6.86%

29.41%

4710

90% 100%

36

21

30

102



Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q5 Are you concerned about having to close your business permanently?

Answered: 103 Skipped. 0

Yes

0% 10% 20% 3% 401%% 50% 60% TO% BO% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

No 61.17% 63
s 38.83% 40
TOTAL s

5/10



Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q6 What type of revenue loss (annual) do you foresee happening as a
result of this pandemic?

Answered 103 Skipped: 0

0-25%

26 -5 0%
5175 %
T6-100%
0% 10% 20% 0% 4% 50% G TO% Bl 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
0-25% 20.39% 21
26-50% 32.04% 33
51-75% 24.27% 26
76-100% 23.30% 24
TOTAL 102

6/10



Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q7 What additional problems do you predict may happen for your
business?

Answered: 103 Skipped: G

Loss of §
regular clie... §

Major revenue
loss

Loss of
long-term...

Loss of major =
suppliers fo..

0%  10% 20% % 4% 50% G0% TO% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Loss of regular clients or customers 63.11%
Major revenue loss 78.64%
Loss of long-term employees who may seek employment elsewhere 21.36%
Loss of major supgliers for your business 31.07%

Total Respondents: 103

7110



Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q8 How can municipalities and/or economic development staff or help to

ANSWER CHOICES
1

s

3

support you through this crisis?

Answered: 94

8/10

Skipped: 9

RESPONSES
100.00%

44.68%

23.40%

94

42



Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q9 Are there any comments or questions you have for our department or
the Almaguin Highlands Chamber of Commerce, or any additional support
you may need?

Answered: 77 Skipped: 26

9/10



Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q10 Would you like to schedule a follow up call with an ACED team
member?

Answered: 102 Skipped. 1

Yes [

0% 10% 0% 305 4% 50% B0% T B0% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes 17.65% 18
N 82.35% 84
TOTAL 102

10/10



Q 8 and 9: How can municipalities and/or economic development staff help to support you

_ through this crisis, and are their any additional comments or guestions?

Suggestions # Of times
recommendation
was made

Eliminate late charges and interest on tax bills or other tax relief measures 19
Improved communications with the community of fundmg, assistance or 18
support (provide link to investalmaguin.ca/COVID-19 page)
Promote/Advertise Almaguin Region and local businesses after lockdown 17
measures to remain competitive or encourage shop local initiatives
Provide assistance with grant and loan applications U 9 8 20 $=l
Provide grants directly to businesses 8 s
Advocate the community’s needs to higher levels of government, banks and 7

_utility companies such as hydro for lower delivery charges B 10 | 1
| Digital Mainstreet can assist businesses with online sales or digital meetmgs q
Breaks on other municipal bills like water bllls Sk 3
| Help reduce hydro delivery charge to our resort while shut down 358
Provide rent subsidies D etk 2
Setup Business Networklng portal where businesses can communicate with 2
| each other

' Re|axmg red~tape restrictions like subdivision approvals to stimulate the 2

| economy and encourage development and expansion projects in the community
| Work with community to offer delivery services R 1
Open parks and campsites to families wanting to get out of the city 1 |
Advocate for provincial deregulation of harvesting and other forestry related 1
legislation. Provide greater authorizations to haul. 5
Get the building departments open as soon as it's safe 3 1
| Businesses tab promoting local business on web page, face book ect 1
Create emergency allowances for low credit individuals. dheBe it Etredng]
Lifted construction bans LR
Developlng more incentives for businesses hiring students 1
They could also speak out against the negative comments with regards to our 1
| cottagers on FB. AL WAL
Work towards increased internet coverage for people required to work from 1

! home




ANSWER CHOICES
Name

Company

Address

Address 2
Municipality
State/Province
ZIP/Postal Code
Country

Email Address

Phone Number

1

Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q1 Please provide the following information:

Answered 16

1710

Skipped: )

RESPONSES
100.00%

100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
93.75%

0.00%

16

16

15



ANSWER CHOICES

>5

5-15

16-30

31+
TOTAL

Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q2 How many employees do you have?

Answered: 16

16-30

0%

Q0%

A%

40% 50%

2/10

Skipped: 0

G0%% T0% BO%

RESPONSES
62.50%

31.25%

6.25%

0.00%

90% 100%

10

16



Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q3 Due to the current situation with COVID-19, have you had to / do you
expect to lay-off any employees?

Yes (>5)

Yes (5-10)

ves (10+)

0% 10% 20%

ANSWER CHOICES
No

Yes (>5}

Yes (5-10}

Yes {10+)
TOTAL

Answered: 16

30

40% 504

3/10

Skipped: 0

G0% T0%

RESPONSES
50.00%

50.00%
0.00%

0.00%

B0

90% 100%

16



Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q4 If you are concerned about the future of your business during the
COVID-19 lockdown, when do you predict your business will reach its
financial crisis point?

Answered: 15 Skipped: 1

=1 manth

1-3 months §

3-6 manths

6-8 months

Other (please
specify}

0%  10% 20% 30% 405 50% 60% TO% BO% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
> 1 month 13.33%

1-3 months 26.67%

3-6 months 26.67%

6-9 manths 0.00%

Other {please specify) 33.33%
TOTAL

4/10



Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q5 Are you concerned about having to close your business permanently?

Answered: 16 Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 304 A% 50% 60%% T0% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
o 62.50% 10
Yes 37.50% 6
TOTAL ot

5/10



Q6 What type of revenue loss (annual) do you foresee happening as a

ANSWER CHOICES

0-25%

26-50%

51-75%

76-100%
TOTAL

0-25%

26-50%

51-75%

T6-100%

0%

10%

Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

result of this pandemic?

2005

Answered: 16

305,

4% 50%

6/10

Skipped: O

60% TO%

RESPONSES
31.25%

37.50%
6.25%

25.00%

BOYs

90% 100%

16



Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q7 What additional problems do you predict may happen for your
business?

Answered. 16 Skipped: 0

l.oss of
regular clie...

Major revenue
loss

Loss of
long-term...

Loss of major

suppliers fo..
0% 10%  20%  30%  40% 50%  60%  70%  BO%  90% 100%
ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
Loss of regular clients or customers 50.00%
Major revenue loss 75.00%
Loss of long-term employees who may seek employment elsewhere 31.25%
Loss of major suppliers for your business 43.75%

Total Respondents: 16

7/10



Almaguin Business Outreach COVID-19

Q8 How can municipalities and/or economic development staff or help to
support you through this crisis?

Answered: 12 Skipped: 4

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES
3 100.00% 12
v 16.67% 2
3 0.00% 0

B/10



Almaguin Business QOutreach COVID-19

Q9 Are there any comments or questions you have for our department or
the Almaguin Highlands Chamber of Commerce, or any additional support
you may need?

Answered. 9 Skipped: 7

9/10



Almaguin Business Qutreach COVID-19

Q10 Would you like to schedule a follow up call with an ACED team

Tes

member?

Answered: 16 Skipped. 0

0% 0% 20%

ANSWER CHOICES

Yes

No
TOTAL

30% 40% 50% 60% TO% B0% 20% 100%

RESPONSES
18.75% 3
81.25% 13

16

16/10



L '
Le i
s
L) !
]




THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

BY-LAW NO. 2020-12

Being a By-law to adopt the water and wastewater budgets for 2020

WHEREAS Section 391 of the Municipal Act permits a municipality to pass by-laws
imposing fees or charges on any persons; for services; and

WHEREAS the Municipal Act provides for interest charges and penalties for fees and
charges that are due and unpaid,;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE
CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN ENACTS AS
FOLLOWS:

1. That the attached 2020 Water and Wastewater Budgets (Appendix “A”) be
adopted.
READ a FIRST and SECOND time April 21, 2020.

READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed as such in open Council
May S. 2020.

Mayor

CAQ-Clerk-Treasurer

frres o T e et



S'SL6'6v. 81 685965 bY'GLeLig 9NUIABY 19MBG pUe J3JBA [B10
9£'2¢9' L8y 62°Z9¢'30Y SEZES 0ZY INUIAIY JOIBM
00'000'9 TL9L6'L v8°0L)'S saljeuad [0t095-0£-01
5801209 Sanlasay Wwai4 Jajsuel | [0£095-0€-01
00°000°L 8P'ELLT 00°000'L §384 UoN2BULOD|0Z095-0E-01
s8)ey Jlep I210J8Wwo) [01095-08-01
196pnq( LS LZY'YLY 66 22¥'98¢ LS LZP iy Saley 1M |eruapIsay (S0095-08-01
JA 1se| woyy soul 9,
wewlb gioz] - 00°0SZ'L1 MM JUBIS) [eIDUINI4 ]S L0ZS-0E-01
woy juswhed jse|
18bpng 0zoz| 1emov 6L0z| jabpng 6102 SNUIADY - 1AJBM
60'£82'892 6£°9Z0°881 60°C82'061 aNUAADY JIMIS |BJ0 )|
- JMMOD-IUBIS|59096-0-01
CE'8SP'9/ BAI9SIY WOl J5psuel ) 1dmaS[06095-04-01
00°00S'v 28°41E'S 2L 85’ Saljjeusd Jamag[08095-01-01
00°000°L - 00°000'L S8|eS Jamas 102095-0%-01
Sajey JaMag _m_EmEEoO omomm-ov.o_‘
3SBa.dU %, O} //'¥ZE'98L 45'802'Z81 11°¥ZE'081 JoMag |BRuBpISaY [0S095-0t-01
1abpng 0z0z| 1emov 610z 126png g1L0z 3NUIAIY - Jomag

020z 196png jomag B iojepp



00°000°0¢€ LP ¥61 Ve 00°'000'22 sayddng pue jeLajeyy asnoydwng]oisr9-0c-0}
00°000°'S 1899 00'000°S inogen ssnoydwing [00S¥9-08-01
00°000'L = 00°000'L s823 BunNSUoD [097¥9-08-01
00°005'S 00°00%'S 00°00%'S Jajsuel ) aMsay Asuabuiuod|osyia-0s-0t
00'000'S LY EPR'E 00'000'S BuluIBI] jouuosIsd |0ry9-08-01
- Ov'ZeL'82 = SBAlgsay 0} Jaysuel | [0EyP9-0E-01
00°000'0L 00'68L'8 00°000'01 sajiddng pue |eusiey UpY |01 +79-08-01
00°000'22 98°050'2Z 00°000'22 JnogeT - LWpY|00FP9-0E-01
196png 0zoz| Ien1ov 6L0Z| 3ebpng Loz sasuadx3] - 193
60°£82'892 6£'920°881L 60°£82'061 sasuadx3 Jamag |ejo)
LL'/£8'92 0l°/£8'9Z L1 'Z€8'9Z |ediduld Juawhed UeoT|GGE o001
GZ0Z ui auop| 86'Sw6' s 86'GHB'L 86'SH6'L 1s8J3) Juawied ueo[osero-0r-01L
bussuibu] v3 ssen
paoeidai| 00 000°09 = 00°'000'0¢ saiddng pue jeusiel 1€31ded |01 £v9-07-01
uigll uc aul ped
00'005'Z LY'ShlL 00'000'2 dnogen] jeyded|00er9-0v-01
Juawiaaoiduln LogeIU)
00°000'sH 00°000'1L saun eiswed @ ysn|4 sjealold [ewads|ozerg-0r-01
00°000'22 91°6£9'/2 00°000'02 sslddng pue |eisiely UoRNQUISIJ|OY L ¥9-CF-01
00°000'01 SEYOP'9 00'000'LL inogey uolnguisialos L ¥9-0t-01
00°000'69 00'Z£0'v9 00°000'79 YMOO{0ZIS-0t-01
00°00S'9 80'6.2'2 00000’ sa|lddng pue |elu@IB 9SNoydwng|o) L #3-0p-01
00°005°L £CL81L 00°000'2 inoge’] asnoydwnd|o0L r9-0t-01
= = $884 BunINSUOD{DFOY9-01-0L
00°000'} = 00°000'} Buuies} jpuuosiad|ocora-ov-oL
: L2 09S'EE e SDAI9S3Y O} J9JSUB]] [DZ0P9-0t-0L
00'000'S LA LPB'E 00°000'S s31jddng pue |eusiei UIWPY[01.0t9-0v-01L
00°000'04 00°000'01 00°000'01 inogeT - LWPY|000¥9-07-01
19bpng 0zoz| (emov 6L0z| Jebpng 5L0z sasuadx3y - 1amag



St'SLE'6YL 81 '68€'965 PP GLE'LLY SeNnUaAlY Jamag pue Jajem |ejo |
St'Si6'6YL 81'68€'966 vr'SLE'LLY S9suadx3y Jamag pue isjem 1ejo)
8£°7Ze9'Lay 62°29¢°80% SE'ZES'0ZY sasuadx3 19jep [BJO |
sesh 1sel 6zozl evgre Zo1 EY'8PE /0L Zy'8ve' 0L [ediound yuawled ueoT|se/vo-0e-01
£6'E8L°LE £6°€82'LE £6°€82°'LE isaJau) wawihed ueol]og; #9-0c-01
00'000'0S - 00°000'05 ainypusdx3 |eyded Jaen|0s/v9-0c-01
sa|iddng pue [euajep eydes O¥Z¥3-0£-0L
‘00S8| 00°000'Z9 69 .€£9'Ge 00°000's2 saiiddng pue reusiey [e)ded|s|/59-0c-01
SOIpeLpg, Juswdinbs
qe| .v:, |emaual
82U3D]] 'YG| sIosUaS
12A9] |lam M|
HOM JIoaIBSal HGT
00000’ ££8/ 00000's noqet ended oL /vy9-0c-01
0L0Z 8lepdn  w¥SSIMS - YADO
buiisa] pead uonenBay J0W|0S5r9-08-01
00°000'vLL ¥9'L8B'ELL 00°000'96 suonesadp Asuaby YmD0|0z/p9-08-01
00°'000'02 90'Z98'slL 00°000'02 salddng pue sjieiaje uonnqLIsig 0E5P9-0E-01
00°000°G| 9/°/60'LL 00°000'S!L 4NOQeT) UoORNQINSIT|0ZSH9-0E-01L




THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

BY-LAW NO. 2020-13

Being a by-law to adopt the water and wastewater Rate and Fee Schedule for 2020

WHEREAS Section 391 of the Municipal Act permits a municipality to pass by-laws
imposing fees or charges on any persons; for services; and

WHEREAS the Municipal Act provides for interest charges and penalties for fees and
charges that are due and unpaid;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE

CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN ENACTS AS
FOLLOWS:

1. That the attached 2020 Water and Wastewater Rates and Fees (Appendix “A”) be
adopted.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time April 21. 2020

READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed as such in open Council May 35, 2020.

Mayor

CAO-Clerk-Treasurer

fosteor | LA j



Water & Wastewater SCHEDULE A - Rates & Fee
By-law 2020-i3

New / Replacement Meters & Services

Size of service pipe Cost! §

-« - Positive displacerment meters - |- R
15 % 20mm $254.77
ORI IR N T 308 37

25mm $339.01
T 0mm $678.02
50mm $758.21
L ATIDINE Reters i & G, b i ey
SOmm__ 1 sL3agE
________ 100mm $3,218.57 |
150mm $4,915.65
Compotnd riieters ..
S0mm $2,205.60
75mm R $3,333.26
T 100mm $4,578.03
150mm $7,264.36 |

Consumptive and Fixed Monthly Charpes

Fixed Monthly Charge Based on Meter Size

Meter Size Mcter Size (inches) Service Charge ($/30-
{mm) days)
15 0.62 22.37
20 0.75 22.37
25 1 22,37
40 1.5 28.80
50 2 46.39
75 3 111.94
100 4 175.93
Consumptive Rates - Water
Usage Rate — based on Owner Class Usage Rates ($/m’)
Single or two-family residential metered 2.92
Multi-family metered 2.92
Industrial/Commercial/Institutional 2.92
Consumptive Rates -Wastewater (Sewer) Surcharge
Usage Rate — based on Owner Class Usage Rates ($/m*)
Single or two-family residential metered — 66.7% of Water Rate 1.95
Multi-family metered — 66.7% of Water Rate 1.95
Industrial/CommerciaVlnstitutional — 66.7% of Water Rate 1.95

Flat Rate or Temporary Water Rate

*Includes installation cost.




Description Water Rate
Residential flat rate (unable to meter) - 121.47
Monthly
Residential flat rate (refuse to meter) - Monthly 362.80
Construction/Temporary water rate ($/30-days) 121.47
Interrupted Usage Fixed rate/mo

Plus tum offfon charge per user fee by-law

Penalties & Offences

Offence Penalties
Offence Specified
Penalty
Prohibited installation upstream of meters $250

control device

Prohibited installation upstream of premises-isolating cross connection | $250

Tamper, break or remove seal on water service connection or meters $250

Failure to notify of damaged meters

3250

Failure to notify of broken seal on bypass valve or meters within 24- | $250

hours

Interfere or tamper with meters or reading device $500
Prohibited opening of bypass valve or metering installation $500
Tamper meter AMR system $100

Others
Offence Specified
Penalty

Provide false information $100

Allow potable water to run off parcel directly into the strect or sidewalk | $75

Damage, destroy, remove, interfere with water system $500
Interfere with another Owner's use of water system $250
Prohibited connection to water system $1,000
Hindrance of Municipality Employee or agent $500
Failure to maintain shut-off valve $250
Unauthorized operation of water service valve $250
Allow unauthorized operation of water service valve $250
Unauthorized cross connection §500
Unauthorized use of alternate source of water $250
Unauthorized connection of alternate water source to water system $500

remises

Prohibited sharing of water supply from one premuses to other eligible | $500

Late charges for bills (on “principal” arrears)

1.25% per
month




THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

BY-LAW NO. 2020-14

Being a By-Law to provide for the registration, licensing and regulation of dogs and regulation of
kennels in the Municipality of Powassan

WHEREAS Sections 9 and 10 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0. 2001, ¢.25, as amended, confer the
power to a municipality to pass by-laws regulating or prohibiting animals;

AND WHEREAS Section 103 of the Municipal Act confers the power upon a municipality to
pass a by-law to provide for the seizure and impounding of animals being at large or trespassing
and the sale of impounded animals under certain conditions;

AND WHEREAS Section 129 of the Municipal Act, 8$.0. 2001, ¢.25 as amended, permits
municipalities to pass by-laws to prohibil noises likely to disturb inhabitants within the
municipality;

AND WHEREAS Section 391 of the Municipal Act enables a municipality to pass by-laws
imposing fees or charges on any class of persons for services or activities provided or done by or
on behalf of it;

AND WHEREAS Council is desirous to ensure that animals are kept and treated in a humane
manner and that the owners of animals provide good quality care to them;

AND WHEREAS the Ontario Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act, RS.0.,
1990, Chap.0.36, provides special powers to help animals in distress;

AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient to enact a by-law to license, regulate and govern
canines in the Municipality, that such a by-law be passed.

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF
POWASSAN HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. That all schedules attached hereto form part of this by-law
2. That By-Law 2016-07 be rescinded

3. ‘That this by-law come into effect upon adoption
4, For the purposes of this by-law,
a) “Amenity” shall mean pleasant and agreeable with an absence of nuisances, and when
applied specially, it means a pleasant and agreeable environment for any particular

activity.

b) “Animal Control Officer” includes any person so appointed by Council to administer and
enforce this by-law.,



¢}

d)

€)

g}

h)

1)
k)

)

“At large” — any dog shall be deemed to be at large when found in any place other than
the premises of the owner and not under the control of a competent person.

“Council” shall mean the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan.

“Dog” or “Canine” Any member of Canis familiaris family and shall mean a male or
female dog(s) over the age of twelve weeks, and shall include any domesticated or cross
breed canine.

“Fenced Yard” shall mean a yard which is completely enclosed by a fence constructed in
accordance with the specifications set out in Section 7 (g) of this by-law, provided that
the walls of a continuously occupied building are considered as proportions of the
required fence, and provided that all doors in such walls and gates in fences are equipped
with secure catches.

“Gate” shall mean a swinging or stiding barrier used to fill or close an access and
includes a door, and shall be equipped with a secure catch.

“Kennel” shall mean a Kennel, licensed within the Municipality of Powassan, as per
Schedule “A” which is for a commercial purpose and/or a boarding or rescue shelter for
canines. H shall include an kennel facility which is housed inside of a house/home. All
kennels, licensed within the Municipality of Powassan, that provide a service such as
boarding, training, rescue or breeding, must comply with all of the kennel regulations, as
outlined in Schedules A and B (if applicable) of this bylaw.

“License” shall mean a license issued under this by-law; and further shall mean a Kennel
OR dog license.

“Municipal Building” shall mean any building or facility owned by the Municipality.
“Municipal Law Enforcement Officer” shall mean a person appointed by the Council of
the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan who shall be a Provincial Offences Act

appointed official, for the purpose of enforcing the by-laws of the municipality.

“Municipality” shall mean the Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan.

m) “Owner” of a dog(s) shall include any person, group of persons, partnership or

n)

p)

corporation owning, keeping or harbouring a domesticated canine or canines. “Owns” or
“Owned” have a corresponding meaning and where the owner is a minor, the person
responsible for the custody of the minor.

“Public property” shall mean any municipal, provincial or federal property within the
boundaries of the Municipality of Powassan,

“Quality of Life” shall mean the preservation and enhancement of those attributes which
have established the quality and character of the Municipality of Powassan and which
maintain the rural and small urban atmospheres that prevail.

“Registered Service Dog” — A dog who provides service and has an identification card
under Act, R.S.0. 1990, C.b.7. Service dogs include dogs for the visual, hearing or
mobility impaired, and those with other disabilities, as well as therapy dogs.



Q)

s)

1)

u)

a)

b)

¢)

¢)

“Replacement Tag” shall mean providing a tag for a tag which has been lost, or for a dog
transferring with a valid tag to Powassan from another municipality.

“Responsible Person” shall mean a person who is eighteen (18) years of age and shall not
include persons who have been deemed by the medical profession as ‘mentally
challenged’.

“Restricted Dog” shall mean; a dog that is a Pit Bull dog; "pit bull” includes: pit bull
terrier, Staffordshire bull terrier, American Staffordshire terrier, American pit bull terrier,
member of a class of dogs that have an appearance and physical characteristics that are
substantially similar to dogs referred to in any of clauses (a) to (d); ("pit-bull”). NOTE:
Restricted and affected breeds/types are provincially listed.

“Rural Zone” shall mean the zone defined in Zoning By-Law no. 2003-38, which sets out
the property zones within the municipality.

“Running at Large” shall mean a dog(s) found either off the property on which it is kept
and not restrained or not under the control of any responsible person.

“Vicious Dog” means any individual dog that it has been determined, in a proceeding
commenced pursuant to Section 4 of the Dog Owners Liability Act, to have attacked a
person or domestic animal, or any dog whose owner has acknowledged in writing, that
the dog has attacked a human or other domestic animal).

“Working Dog” means a dog that is trained and used for a specific purpose. Working
dogs include those used for herding and guarding livestock, and those employed by
military, search and rescue and law enforcement agencies.

LICENSING

Every person residing in the Municipality of Powassan who is the owner of a dog over 12
weeks of age, shall within immediately following the date that the dog(s) comes into his
or her possession, obtain a license for the dog(s) and register the dog(s) with the
Municipality.

The maximum number of dogs per household within the Municipality of Powassan, is
two (2). No person shall harbor more than two dogs.

i) Such owners having more than two (2) dogs prior to the inception of the 2009
Animal Control By-law , as per the record kept at the municipal office, are for the
lifetime of these dogs only, hereby exempt from the total number allowable per
household, until such a time that the number of dogs are in compliance with this by-
law. Fees are outlined in Schedule “A” of this by-law.

‘Working dogs’ are exempt from the restriction on the number of dogs per household and
do not need to be licensed.

The cost of the license shall be as prescribed in Schedule “A”, This schedule may be
amended by Council from time to time and shall not affect the remaining sections of the



d)

g)

h)

by-law. A public meeting may be held to deal with such amendments.

Upon full payment of the license fee(s) the owner of a dog(s) shall be fumished with a
serially numbered dog tag(s) and the said tag(s) shall be kept securely on the dog(s) at all
times. Dog(s) found off their owner’s property and to be without their tag(s) securely
attached to their collar(s) are subject to a fine(s) as per Schedule “B” of this by-law.

The replacement tag fee for a lost dog tag shall be as prescribed in Schedule “A”.

Records shall be kept by the Municipality of Powassan Office and provided to the Animal
Control Officer showing:

i) the name, full address and phone number of the dog owner.,

i) the breed, age, sex and description of the dog.

iii) the serial number of the dog tag and fees paid in respect to each dog.
iv) the name of the Kennel and breed(s) of dogs kept at the kennel.

No person, with the exception of those outlined in a list maintained at the municipal
office and by the Animal Control Officer, shall own or operate a Kennel without
complying with the regulations as set out in Schedule “C” of this by-law.

Every license issued to an owner is personal to that owner and may not be assigned or
transferred to a new owner.

The Municipality of Powassan may suspend or revoke any dog license issued to any
individual/licensee who has contravened this by-law,

DOG OWNERS’ ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

a)

b)

No person/persons or owner shall:
i) permit a dog to be at large,

ii) permit their dog to trespass onto private property or trespass onto any public
property,

iii) fail to ensure dogs are leash no greater than 2 meters while being walked on public
property or any property other than that where the dog normally resides,

iv} fail to forthwith pick up, remove and dispose of in the appropriate receptacle any
excrement left by the dog.

No person or owner shall permit a dog other than a registered service dog, to enter any
Municipal building unless they are partaking in either a registered competition or a
scheduled event that has been approved by the Municipality.

A dog impounded pursuant to Schedule “B” of this by-law may be restored to the owner
if the owner claims possession of the dog within the period of five (5) business days from
the date that the dog is impounded, and payment of the pound and maintenance fees



d)

g

h)

i)

k)

imposed by the Municipality, as set out in Schedules “A” and “B” to this bylaw, are
received in full,

The owner of a dog shall be charged with all costs related to the impounding of the dog
and if the dog is not redeemed within the redemption period and such fees not paid by the
owner of the dog, the fees will be sent to Small Claims Court if not paid by the said
owner.

Every person who keeps a dog, which normally resides outside, or which is kept outside
unsupervised for extended periods of time, shall ensure the dog is provided with fresh
water and a fenced yard/enclosure that meets the following criteria:

i} a pen or dog run with a solid base, that is at least 4 feet wide and 10 feet in
length, and is suitable to prevent the escape of the dog;

if) Contains, or has attached, a draft-proof house or shelter that will provide
protection from the weather and an area providing sufficient shade to protect
the dog from the direct rays of the sun at all times.

til) Pens and run areas must be regularly cleaned and disinfected, and excreta
removed and properly disposed of daily.

iv) Dogs ticd out must have a minimum of 10 feet of chain with swivel clips at
both ends, securcly attached to the kennel, building, post or overhead running
line

v} ALL dogs need 1o be provided with an enclosure that is suitable for its
size.etc.

No person shall own, possess, or harbor a vicious dog(s) within the land area known as
the Municipality of Powassan. The Municipality is under the jurisdiction of the Dog
Owners’ Liability Act & related legislation with respect to vicious or dangerous dogs

No owner shall permit his'her dog(s) to attack any person or domestic animal(s), or to
fight with another dog.

No person shall permit a dog to bark continuously and excessively at anytime so as to
disturb *“The Quality of Life” and “Amenity” of either any resident or any person in the
vicinity.

Schedules “A™ and “B” of this by-law may be amended yearly to accommodate changes
in the fee schedule which must remain attached. Such amendment may require a public

meeting before council approval,

This by-law applies to al dogs residing within the boundaries of the Municipality of
Powassan.

No person or owner shall disobey an order issued under this by-law by a Municipa! Law
Enforcement Officer

No person shall interfere with, hinder or otherwise interfere with a Municipal Law



Enforcement Officer, Provincial Offences Officer, Police Officer or other duly appointed
individuals in the lawful carrying out of their duties and responsibilities under the
provisions of this bylaw or interfere with any agent of the Corporation of the
Municipality of Powassan in the performance of any duty by such agent, or seek to
release any animal in the custody of the Animal Control Officer or any Agent except as
herein approved.

RESTRICTED DOGS

Biil 132 (Public Safety Related to Dogs Statute Law Amendment Act) which was passed
in 2005 and received Royal Assent on March 9, 2005, bans pit bulls in Ontario, places
restrictions on existing pit bulls and toughens the penalties for owners of any dog that
poses a danger to the public.

All dog owners must comply with the amended requirements of the Act.

Pit bull owners may keep their existing dogs, as long as they comply with certain
requirements.

Other individuals are however prohibited from owning, breeding, transferring, importing
or abandoning pit bulls,

The owner of a restricted dog shall ensure that the following conditions are adhered to
prior to a license being issued:

i) Such dog is spayed or neutered,

i1} When such dog is on the property of the owner, it shall be either securely
confined indoors or in a securely enclosed and locked pen or structure, suitable to
prevent the escape of the dangerous dog and capable of preventing the entry of
any person not in control of the dog. Such pen or structure must have minimum
dimensions of 1.8 yards by 3.6 yards (2 metres by 4 metres), and must have
secure sides and a secure top. If it has no bottom secured to the sides, the sides
must be embedded into the ground no less than 11.8 inches (30 cm) deep. The
enclosure must also provide for protection from the elements for the dog. The
pen or structure shall not be within one meter of the property line, or within 5.4
yards (3 metres) of a neighbouring dwelling. Such dog may not be chained as a
means of confinement.

iii) A sign is displayed at each entrance to the property and buiiding in which the dog
is kept, warning in writing, as well as with a symbol, that there is a restricted dog
on the property. The sign shall be visible and legible from the nearest road or
thoroughfare.

iv) A policy of hability insurance, satisfactory to the Municipality, must be produced
as evidence of insurance in force in the amount of at least two million dollars,
covering the twelve-month period during which licensing is sought, for injuries
caused by the owner’s restricted dog. This policy shall contain a provision
requiring the municipality to be named as an additional insured for the sole
purpose of the community to be notified by the insurance company of any



f)

g)

h)

J)

k)

9.

If the Animal Control Officer is unable to seize any dog(s) found to be running at large
and the owner is known to the Animal Control Officer, the owner shall receive written
notice of the fine described in  Schedule “C” of this by-law,

The Animai Control Officer should be contacted when a dog is injured on property
other than that where it is kept, so that an assessment may be made as to the necessity
for veterinary services.

All Kennels will be inspected annually by the Animal Control Officer, and a copy of the
inspection report will be given to the Municipality before the kennel license is issued for
that year. The inspection will be done to confirm compliance with Schedules “A” and
“B” of this bylaw. A copy of he inspection report will also be given to the kennel
owner/operator and where improvements or changes are required, the Municipality will
notify the kennel owner/operator that changes are necessary before the kennel license is
issued for that year.

Subsequent kennel inspections, where deficiencies were noted at the original inspection,
shail be done in a timely manner. Additional kennel inspections may also be done
where deficiencies have not been remedied to the satisfaction of the Animal Control
Officer. A kennel license will only be issued when all requirements for a kennel have
been met.

Kennel owners will be provided with a license certificate which must be posted at each
kennel site. It will contain the name of the kennel, date of the successiul inspection and
the expiry date of the license.

All reasonable efforts will be made to redeem all dogs, however, all dogs which have

not been redeemed by their Owners within the 5-day period, may/shall be either released
into the care of a rescue shelter, or re-homed by the Animal Control Officer.

SEVERABILITY

If a court of competent jurisdiction should declare any section or part of any section of this
by-law to be invalid, such section or part of a section shall not be constructed as having
persuaded or influenced council to pass the remainder of the by-law and it is hereby declared
the remainder of the by-law shall be valid and shall remain in force.

10.

a)

b)

ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES

A Municipal Law Enforcement Officer is authorized to enforce this by-law pursuant to
the provisions hereof, the Municipal Act, 2001, $.0., ¢.25, Section 9, as amended or any
successor thereof, and the Provincial Offences Act, R.S.0. 1990 c. P. 33, as amended or
any successor thereof,

If a Municipal Law Enforcement Officer is satisfied that this by-law has been
contravened, the officer may make an order known as an Order to Discontinue Activity,
requiring the person who contravened the by-law, or who caused or permitted the
contravention, to discontinue the contravention.



cancellation, termination, or expiration of the policy.

f) Regulations applied to the handling and control of a licensed, restricted dog are as follows:

i} The owner of a dog that has been designated as “restricted”, who is unwilling
or unable to comply with the requirements of this section and upon
conviction under the Municipal Act, 2001 or Dog Owners’ Liability Act may
be:

A) Subject to a penalty under the Provincial Offences Act of up to
5,000.00, or

B) The said dog shall be humanely euthanized by a licensed
Veterinarian, Humane society, animal shelter, or animal control
agency after a three-day holding period.

g) Any owner of a dog that has been designated as “Restricted” under this by-law must notify
the municipality and the Animal Control Officer if the dog is relocated.

8. ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER

The Animal Control Officer as appointed by Municipal Council is authorized to maintain a
pound as directed by Council.

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

All Animal Control Officers shall be required to have a Police Check done prior to being
appointed, and must provide confirmation of a valid ‘G’ class driver’s license,

Every dog found running at large contrary to the provisions of this by-law may be
seized and impounded by the Animal Control Officer or his/her designate, and
impounded in the pound designated by Council.

Where a dog is impounded by the Animal Control Officer, the owner, if known, and
whether the dog is claimed from the pound or not, shall be liable for the pound fees and
shall pay all fees on demand by written notice as per Schedules “A” and “B” of this by-
law, to the Municipality directly. All owners should be notified within a reasonable
amount of time after pick-up if the dog is micro chipped, or has other ID ora tag. A
timeframe of two weeks will be designated for receipt of imposed pound fee payments
at the municipal office.

All impounded dogs will have a photo and details provided immediately or as soon as
possible to the Municipal Office for posting on municipal social media.

It shall be the duty of the Animal Control Officer or Agent to provide suitable pound
quarters as approved by the Council, in which to keep, in a humane manner, all dogs
impounded under the provisions hereof. The Animal Control Officer or Agent shall
record in an appropriate report an accurate account of all dogs placed in the pound,
including date of receipt, times of feeding and watering, the manner of conclusion to the
dog’s impoundment and the charges levied for impoundment. A copy of this report
should be provided to the municipal office on a monthly basis.



¢} An Order to Discontinue Activity shall set out:
() the address of the property on which the contravention occurred;
(ii) the date of the contravention;
(iii) the reasonable particulars of the contravention of the by-law; and
(iv) the date by which there must be compliance with the order.
d) The Order to Discontinue Activity may be served personally on the person to whom it is
directed or by regular mail to the last known address of that person, in which case it shall be

deemed to have been given on the third day after it is mailed. Service on a corporation can be
effected by registered mail to the corporate mailing address.

¢) Pursuant to section 436 of the Municipal Act, 2001, an Officer may enter onto Land
at any reasonable time for the purpose of carrying out an inspection to determine
whether or not:

i) this by-law is being comptied with;

i) a direction or order of the Municipality made pursuant to the Municipal
Act, 2001 or any successor thereof or made pursuant to a by-law of the
Municipality is being complied with; or

tii) an order made pursuant to Scction 431 of the Municipal Act, 2001 which
prohibits the continuation of repetition of an offence is being complied with

f} Every person who contravencs any provision of this bylaw is guilty of an offence and
upon conviction is liable 1o a fine as provided for by the Provincial Offences Act, R.S.O.
1990, Chapter P.33, as amended.

) When a person has been convicted of an offence under this by-law:

i) the Ontario Count of Justice, or
i) any court of competent jurisdiction thereafter may, in addition to any other

penalty imposed on the person convicted, make an order prohibiting the
continuation or repetition of the offence by the person convicted.

Read a FIRST and SECOND time, April 21, 2020
Read a THIRD and FINAL time and ADOPTED May 5, 2020

Mayor

Clerk-Treasurer



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN
SCHEDULE “A” OF BY-LAW 2020-

Animal Control

1. Neutered Male or Spayed Female $15.00
if only one dog kept.

2. Each Additional Dog, Spayed/Neutered $20.00
owned by same person or kept in one household

3. Unaltered Dogs (Female & Male) $25.00
if only one dog kept.

4. Each additional dog, unaltered $35.00

owned by same person or kept in one household

5. Kennel license (10 dogs or fewer) $150.00
(includes 3 tags, additional tags $1.00 each)

5. Kennel license (11 dogs or more) $250.00
(includes 3 tags, additional tags $1.00 each)

6. Replacement of a lost tag - first occurrence no charge
- each subsequent $5.00

7. Bail $30.00 — First Offence
$45.00 — Second Offence
$60.00 — Third and Subsequent
Offence(s)

9. Impound Fees $20.00 (per day)
$25.00 (per day) in Winter (Nov 1-Apr
30)



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

SCHEDULE “B” TO BY-LAW 2020-

KENNEL REGULATIONS:
Apply to registered Kennels

AN'NEW kennels subsequent to the passage of this by-law must comply with the
regulations outlined in this Schedule prior to getting a license. Existing, non-conforming
licensed kennels are ‘grandfathered’.

Any new applicant for a kennel license, not previously issued, must first obtain
confirmation that the property location of such kennel complies with the requirements of
the Municipality’s zoning bylaw. Kennels are only a permitted use in rural zones within
the municipality. Notice of the application shall be given to all assessed owners of
property lying within a 1.5 km radius of the applicant’s proposed kenne! location.
Property owners within this defined area shall be given the opportunity to comment on
the granting of a kennel license. The granting of the license will be determined by
Council, in conjunction with the Animal Control and Bylaw Officers. All kennels shall
also be governed by the Code of Practice for Canadian Kennel Operators.

No kennel shall operate within the Municipality without a Municipal Kennel License and
all dogs in a kennet must have some form of id (i.e. microchip, tattoo or a license/tag) and
proof of their rabies vaccination.

Only one Registered Commercial Kennel license will be issued per location,

Where an existing Kennel ceases to exist for a period of one (1) year, or the owner fails
to pay the licensing fec as per Schedule “A” of this bylaw, or the aownership of the
property changes, the use will be deemed 1o have been discontinued. Refunds for partial
year operations will not be issued.

Every person operating a Kennel which has been approved by the Animal Control Officer
or the Municipal Law Enforcement Officer for the Municipality of Powassan, shall
annually and not later than April st in each year apply to obtain a license from the
municipality to operate a Kennel and shall pay the license application fee set out in
Schedule “A” to this by-law. An inspection by the Animal Control Officer and/or
Municipal Law Enforcement Officer or designate shall be made as required, but at a
minimum of every year. Upon a successful inspection being done, a kennel license will
be issued and tags issued for each dog who is not micro chipped or tattooed.

No new Kennels shall be permitted to operate or be licensed within the Municipality of
Powassan unless they are situated in a Rural (RU) Zone on a lot of five (5) acres or
greater, and conform to all of the regulations outlined in this Schedule and any other
applicable building or zoning bylaws of the Municipality.

A Kennel shall be constructed in such a manner that;
a) the building shatl conform to the Ontario Building Code Act that was in place at

the time of construction, and be maintained in such a manner as to be free from
damage,



b) the building shall be separated and enclosed and shall not be attached to a
dwelling unit or any other building which is or can be used for human habitation,

¢) the building shall have a floor of concrete or other impermeable material and
shall have a drain opening constructed as a plumbing fixture, and such floor shall
be thoroughly cleaned daily, or more often if necessary.

d) the building shall be maintained in a sanitary, well ventilated, clean condition and
free from offensive odors.

¢) outside runs and inside pens must be provided for each canine housed.

f) outdoor facilities must include a securely fenced area of sufficient size for the
breed(s) and number of dogs on the premises to run in, and must include areas of
shade and shelter. _

g) Fences shall be of a design that will reasonably deter children from climbing it to
gain access to the fenced in area and that will secure the enclosed dog from
digging its way out of or otherwise escaping from the enclosed yard. If a fence
contains an opening for access, the opening shall be closed with a gate which
shall provide protection equivalent to the fence and shall be equipped with self-
closing, self-latching devices, and located at the top of and inside the gates.
Locks shall be located outside or inside of the gate at the owner’s discretion

h) Feces/waste may be disposed of either on-site, in a manner that does not attract
vermin or flies, which may be a contributing factor to illness with dogs, or
alternatively at the landfill

i) the building shall have windows that may be opened for proper ventilation OR
have a mechanical ventilation device in working order which changes the air at
least two (2) times each hour.

j) In-house kennels must have sufficient indoor and outdoor facilities to ensure that
the dogs can be provided with appropriate exercise and socialization.

8. All canines shall be:

a) maintained in secure, sanitary, well-bedded, well-ventilated, naturally clean
quarters which are maintained and kept at a healthful temperature at all times;

b) kept in appropriate, adequately-sized pens/cages, when crated for periods of time
or overnight, that allow the animal to extend its legs to their full extent, to stand
or sit, to turn around or lie down in a fully extended position; and, constructed
solely of metal, wire, wood, and concrete blocks with impermeable concrete
floors; and

¢) adequately fed and watered periodically each day and kept in a clean and healthy
condition free from vermin and disease.

d) Alleyways and service aisles between pen and cages must be wide enough to
permit safe and efficient movement of people, animals and equipment.

e} The base of any outside pen shall be covered with a minimum three (3) to four
(4) inches of suitable stone or constructed of impermeable concrete. The
perimeter and dividing individual runs of such an area shall be constructed with a
galvanized chain link or welded mesh fence having a minimum height of 6 feet in
height, and shall be deemed part of the building for the purpose of Section 3,
Schedule “C”. All fences must comply with the regulations set out in Section 7
(g) of this bylaw. Outside runs will be no less than four (4) feet in width and no
less than ten (10) feet in length and shall be fenced.

9. For safety purposes, an evacuation plan should be posted on site, and in ail In-house
kennels. All kennels should be able to evacuate quickly in an emergency. The number of



dogs kept should be limited to that which can easily and safely be transported for any
emergency evacuation by the people on site.

10. Suspension/Revocation —

a) The Municipality of Powassan may suspend or revoke a kennel license issued to
any individual/licensee who:
* has past breaches of this by-law, or
¢ has failed to comply with the requirements of:;
1. this by-law or other applicable by-laws of the Municipality of
Powassan, or
2. any other Municipal Corporation or of any statute, order-in-
Council or Regulation of the Legislature of the Province of
Ontario or
3. the Parliament of Canada or any Agency, Board or Commission
thereof, in, upon or in connection with the operation of a Kennel
or in relation to which such license was issued; or,
¢ has any outstanding fines imposed under the Provincial Offences Act
R.S.0. 1990 Chapter P.33, as amended, for the contravention of any
provision of this by-law or any other Municipal by-law or Provincial
statute where such fine is associated with an offence arising out of the
conduct, operation or activity within or in conjunction with the kennel.



The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan
By-Law 2020-15

Being a by-law to allow and regulate the keeping of backyard chickens.

WHEREAS Sections 9 and 10 of the Municipal Act, S.0. 2001, c.25, as amended, confer the
power to a municipality to pass by-laws regulating or prohibiting animalis;

AND WHEREAS Section 103 of the Municipal Act confers the power upon a municipality to
pass a by-law for the seizure and impounding of animals being at large or trespassing and the
sale of impounded animals under certain circumstances;

AND WHEREAS Section 129 of the Municipal Act permits municipalities to pass by-laws to
prohibit noises likely to disturb inhabitants within the municipality;

AND WHEREAS Section 391 of the Municipal Act enables a municipality to enact by-laws
imposing fees or charges on any class of persons for services or activities provided or done by
or done on behalf of it;

AND WHEREAS Council is desirous to ensure that animals are kept and treated in a humane
manner and that the owners of animais provide good quality care to them;

AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient to enact a by-law to regulate the keeping of backyard
chickens in the Municipality, that such a by-law be passed.

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF
POWASSAN HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

Definitions

1. In this by-law:

“*Animal Control Officer" means an "animal control officer” as defined in by-law
2020-14

"Being at large” means to be found in any place other than the propenrty of the
owner of the chicken and "be at large" has a corresponding meaning.

“Chicken” means an animal classified as Gallus gallus domesticus, of the family
Phasianidae of the Order Galliformes.

"Clerk" means the Clerk of the Municipality;

"Council” means the Council of the Municipality,

| o=y
Page10f 9



"Dwelling unit’ means one room or a group of rooms, occupied or capable of
being occupied as the home or residence of one or more persons, and
containing only one kitchen or other facility for the preparation of meals:

"Humane Society" means The North Bay Humane Society or such other agent as
the Municipality may appoint and retain from time to time for the purposes of
animal control,

"Municipality” means The Corporation of the Municipality of Powassan:

“Officer” means a Municipal Law Enforcement Officer, a Provincial Offences
Officer or any other officer deemed by council to administer this by-law

“Owner" includes a person who possesses or harbours an animal and "owns"
has a corresponding meaning;

"Public place" includes a highway, public park and other municipal property;

General

2.

Notwithstanding section 4.5.2 (i) of By-Law 2003-38 as amended, a person may
keep chickens in their backyard within the Municipality in accordance with the
provisions set out in this by-law. The provisions in this by-law shall only be
applied to lots smaller than 2 hectares within the Municipality.

No owner shall allow or permit their chicken to be at large.

No person shall keep a rooster on a property smaller than two (2) hectares.

No person shall keep more than five chickens on a lot smaller than two hectares.
Any owner shall ensure all chicken coops shall:

(1) be located only in the rear yard, and

(2)  fully enclose the chickens and prevent them from escaping.

No person shall keep a chicken coop closer than:

1) 5 metres from the rear lot line of the lot on which the chicken coop is
located, and

(2} 5 metres feet from any side lot line of the lot on which the chicken coop is
located.

Pace 2 nfQ



10.

Any owner shall ensure dead chickens are disposed of immediately and in any
event, within 48 hours.

No owner shall fail to have hygienic storage of and prompt removal of chicken
feces.

A person who keeps one or more hens must:
(1)  provide each hen with at least
{a)  0.37 m? of coop floor area, and
(b)  0.92 m? of roofed outdoor enclosure;

(2)  provide and maintain a floor of any combination of vegetated or bare earth
in each outdoor enclosure;

(3)  provide and maintain, in each coop, at least one perch, for each hen, that
is at least 15 cm long, and one nest box;

(4) keep each hen in the enclosed area at all times;
(56)  provide each hen with:
(a) food,
(b)  water,
(c) shelter,
(d) light,
(e) ventilation,
(f) veterinary care, and
(9)  opportunities for essential behaviors such as scratching, dust-
bathing, and roosting, all sufficient to maintain the hen in good

health;

(6)  maintain each hen enclosure in good repair and sanitary condition, and
free from vermin and obnoxious smells and substances:

(7)  construct and maintain each hen enclosure to prevent any rodent from

harbouring underneath or within it or within its walls, and to prevent
entrance by any other animal;

Page 3 of 9



(8) keep a food container and water container in each coop;
(9)  keep each coop locked from sunset to sunrise;
(10) remove leftover feed, trash, and manure in a timely manner:
(11) store manure

(@)  within a fully enclosed structure, and

(b)  in quantities not exceeding one cubic metre at a time;
(12) remove all other manure not used for fertilizing forthwith;

(13) follow biosecurity procedures recommended by the Canadian Food
Inspection Agency;

(14) keep hens for personal use only, and not sell:
(a)  eggs,
(b) manure,
(¢)  meat, or
(d)  other products derived from hens;
(15) not slaughter a hen on the property;
(16) not dispose of a hen except by delivering it to a farm, abattoir,
veterinarian, mobile slaughter unit, or other facility that has the ability to

dispose of hens lawfully; and

(17)  notkeep a hen in a cage.

Powers of Officer

11.

12.

Pursuant to section 436 of the Municipal Act, 2001, an officer may enter onto and
across any lands, at any reasonable time, to conduct an investigation or
inspection to ensure the provisions of this by-law are being complied with.

Every chicken found running at large contrary to the provisions of this by-law may

be seized and impounded by an Animal Contro! Officer or their designate, and
impounded in the Animal Shelter designated by council. An owner has three days

Page 4 0of 9



excluding holidays, in which they have the right to redeem an impounded
chicken from the Animai Control Officer. If claimed within the aforementioned
time period, chickens may be redeemed for pound fees levied at the rate
imposed by the Municipality and any feesffines determined in the Schedules.

13.  No person shall interfere with or hinder an officer or any agent of the Corporation
of the Municipality of Powassan in the performance of any duty of such agent.

Severability

14.  If a court of competent jurisdiction should declare any section or part of any
section of this by-law to be invalid, such section or part of a section shall not be
construed as having persuaded or influenced council to pass the remainder of
the by-law and it is hereby declared the remainder of the by-law shall remain
valid and in force.

Penalty

15.  Every person who contravenes any provision of this bylaw is guiity of an offence
and upon conviction is liable to a fine as provided for by the Provincial Offences
Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter P.33, as amended.

16.  When a person has been convicted of an offence under this by-law:

(a) the Ontario Court of Justice, or

(b)  any court of competent jurisdiction thereafter may, in addition to
any other penalty imposed on the person convicted, make an order
prohibiting the continuation or repetition of the offence by the
person convicted.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time, the 218 day of April, 2020

To be READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed, the 5™ day of May,

2020

Mayor Mclsaac CAO/Clerk-Treasurer

Page 5 of 9



1.

s

Schedule “A” to By-Law 2020-15

Bail

impound Fees

Fees
First Offence: $30.00
Second Offence: $45.00

Third and all subsequent: $60.00

Summer $20.00/day
Winter (Nov. 1- Mar. 31)  $25.00/day

Page 6 0f 9



Schedule “B” to By-Lay 2020-15
Set Fines

"COLUMN 1
Short Form Wording

Permit chicken to be at

|large

Keep a rooster on a lot
smaller than 2
hectares

COLUMN 2
Provision Creating
or Defining
Offence

3

Set Fine

COLUMN 3

$100

4

$300

Keep more than 5
chickens on property
smaller than 2

| hectares

Keep chicken coop in
area other than rear
yard.

$100

T

Keep chicken coop
that fails to fully
enclose the chickens
and prevent escape.

6(2)

Keep chicken coop
within 5 metres of rear

| lotline.

Keep chicken coop

|
7(2)
within 5 metres of side |
| lot line.

7(1)

Fail to dispose of dead
chickens within 24
hours.

10.

| removal of feces

Fail to have hygienic
storage/prompt

9

'8

it Lid i Pt |

Fail to provide at least
0.37m? of coop floor
- area.

1.

| Fail to provide at least
| 0.92m? of roofed
outdoor enclosure

10(1)(a)

10(1b)

Page 7 of 9



12.

Fail to keep each hen
in the enclosed area at
all times.

10(4)

$100

13.

Fail to provide each
hen with food.

10(5)(a)

$200

14.

Fail to provide each
hen with water.

10(5)(b)

$200

15.

Fail to provide each
hen with shelter.

10(5)(c)

$200

16.

Fail to provide each
hen with light.

10(5)(d)

$200

17.

Fail to provide each
hen with ventilation

10(5)(d)

$200

18.

Fail to provide each
hen with veterinary
care,

10(3)(e)

$200

19.

Fail to provide each
hen with opportunities
for essential behaviors

10(5)(f)

$200

20.

Fail to maintain
enclosure in
sanitary/vermin free
condition.

10(6)

$200

21.

22.

Fail to keep food/water
container in each
coop.

10(8)

$200

Fail to keep coop
locked from sunset to
sunrise.

10(9)

$100

23.

Fail to remove leftover
feed, trash, and
manure in a timely
manner.

10(10)

$200

24.

Fall to store manure
within a fully enclosed
container

10(11)(a)

$200

25.

Store more than 1
metre? of manure

10(11)(b)

$200

26.

Fail to remove all
manure not used for
fertilizing

10(12)

$200

27.

Fail to follow
biosecurity procedures
recommended by the
Canadian Food
Inspection Agency

10(13)

$500

Paee 8 0f 9



29.

30.

31l

28.

Sell eggs from
backyard chicken

10(14)(a)

| Sell manure from
| backyard chicken.

10(14)(b)

| Sell meat from

{ backyard chicken.
Sell other products
derived from outdoor
chickens.

32.

:10(14xc)'

$200

$200

10(14)(d)

$200

Slaughter or euthanize
“a chicken.

33.

10(15)

dispose of a hen
except by delivering it
to a farm, abattoir,
veterinarian, mobile
slaughter unit.

10(16)

' $200

$200

1'$200

Note: The general penalty provision for the offences listed above is section 16 of

By-Law 2020-15 a certified copy of which has been filed.

Page 9 of 9



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

BY-LAW NO. 2020-16

Being a by-law to adopt the 2020 Municipal Budget

WHEREAS it is necessary for the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of
Powassan pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, (5.0. 2001, ¢. 25) section 290 to prepare and
adopt a budget including estimates of all sums required during the year for the purposes of the
municipality.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of
Powassan hereby enacts as follows:

1. That the attached 2020 Municipal Budget (Appendix **A’") be adopted.

READ a FIRST and SECOND time May 5, 2020

READ a THIRD and FINAL time and considered passed as such in open Council on
May 19, 2020.

Mayor

CAO-Clerk-Treasurer



Page 1
MUNICIPALITY OF POWASSAN

2020 Budget By-Law 2020-16 Appendix "A"
ACCOUNT #'§ ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
Taxation and Grant Revenue
10-10-51000 |Residential & Farm Taxes (3,314,771)
Commercial & Industrial Taxes
10-10-51030 (Railway (11,244)
10-10-51160 |Grants in Lieu - Power Dams (50,652)
10-10-51950 {Province of Ontario (110,000)
10-10-52020 |Province of Ontario - OMPF/Ont.Mun.Partnership Fund (1,023,300)
10-10-52025 |Federal Grants (50,000)
Grants, Donations, Fundraising
10-10-52035 {5,000)
10-20-52040 |Federal Grants - Infrastructure-Inc! gas tax money (215,185)
10-10-35510 |deferred gas tax revenue (218,315)
total Taxation and Grant Revenue (4,998,467)
Licenses
10-60-53000 |Animal Licenses (1,500)
10-10-53010 |Lottery Licenses (4,500)
10-10-53015 |Marriage Licencing & Officiating Rev. {7,500)
10-10-53020 |[Other Licenses -
total Licenses (13,500)
Service Charges
10-45-53500 |Interest & Tax Penalties {125,000)
10-45-53510 |NSF Cheque Fees (150)
10-45-53530 |Interest Earned (15,000)
10-10-53530 |Eides Interest Earned (2,000)
10-10-53550 |Provincial Offences (20,000)
10-10-63650 {Transfers From Other Funds
10-60-53655 |Parking Tickets/Court Fees (5,000)
total Service Charges (167,150)
General Government
10-10-54000 [Administration Funds (6,500)
10-65-57700 |Municipal Logo Merchandise (1,000)
10-10-54010 |Tax Cerlificates (9,500)
10-10-54030 iPhotocopies & Faxes & Oaths {2,400)
10-10-54510 |Transfer from Office Reserve -
10-10-54050 |Sale of Surplus Land/Building -
10-10-54080 |Sale of Equipment
10-10-57040 {250 Clark- Loan
10-10-57041 |2560 Ciark -Space Rentals -
10-10-57042 | 250 Clark- Program Revenue -
10-10-57045 |Fitness Centre @ 250 Clark -




Page 2

ACCOUNT #'S ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
250 Clark Street- new accounts
10-12-57040 | 250 Clark-Sponsorships and Donations (5,000)
10-12-57041 |250 Clark-Space/Room Rental (20,000)
10-12-57042 |250 Clark-Prggrarn and Event Revenue (20,000)
10-12-57045 [Fitness Centre @ 250 Clark (48,000)
10-12-57580 |GAP Program Revenue (14,000)
Total 250 Ciark Revenue (107,000)
Protection to Persons & Property
10-15-53030 [Fire - Fees {9,000)
10-15-53035 |Fire Grant/Donations NEW {10,000)
10-15-55040 [Fire- MTO Calls (10,000)
10-15-55030 |Building - Fire (1,500)
10-15-54510 |Transfer from Reserve - Fire
10-15-54520 |Sale of Fire Trucks/Equipment -
10-45-54550 (911 Service {200)
10-15-51280 INEW- FIRE HALL
10-15-54600 [Nipissing Twp -fire agreement {600)
total Protection to Persons & Property (31,300)
Building
10-45-55000 |Building Permits {60,000)
10-45-55010 |Building - Zoning {1,000)
10-45-55020 |Building - Work Orders {1.200)
total Buildin (62,200)
Transportation
10-20-55500 |Transportation (14,000)
10-10-35512 | Transfer from infrastructure reserve (400,000)
10-20-52115 |OCIF-Top-up App Component -
invest in Canada infrastructure fund ICIF
10-20-55520 |Transfer from Reserves -Equipment reserve
total Transportation (414,000)
Environment
10-25-56200 |Enviro-Lift Charges (30,000)
10-25-56210 |Enviro-Blue Boxes (100)
10-25-56220 |Enviro - Tags (600)
10-25-56230 |Enviro - Gate Receipts (25,000)
10-25-56240 |Enviro - Billings (20,000)
10-25-56265 |transfer from reserves-landfill building -
10-25-56270 (transfer from garbage reserves -
10-25-56260 IWDO Rebates (45,000)
10-25-56267 [Tire Rebates -
10-25-56268 |Electronic Stewardship Rebates (800)
Loan for Garbage compactor on truck (115,000)
total Environment (236,500)

Health Sarvirac




Page 3

ACCOUNT #'§ ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-60-56500 | Medical Cenire Rent (22,500)
10-60-56510 [Medical Centre Loan -
10-60-56505 | Transfer from Medical Reserves -
total Health Services (22,500)
Cemetery
10-85-56530 |Cemetery - Service Revenue (20,000)
10-85-56540 |Cemetery - Interest Income - Care & Maintenance (3,000)
10-85-56550 [Cemetery - INTEREST INCOME (650)
10-85-56560 [Cemetery- Transfer from Reserve
total Cemetery (23,650)
Socijal & Family Services
10-65-57020 |Trout Creek Seniors Hall (0
10-65-57030 |Legion-Revenue
total Social & Family Services (1)
Recreation and Cultural Services
10-55-52000 |Province of Ontario - Recreation (15,500)
10-55-57490 [RECREATION ACTIVITIES (1,000)
10-55-57500 |Parks {300)
10-55-57505 |Playground Inspection Revenue {800)
10-55-57510 { Pool Revenue (20,000)
10-55-57520 |Canada Day {4,000)
10-55-57550 | Fund Raising .
10-55-57570 |Donations (7,000)
10-55-57580 {Recreation Program Revenue
10-55-57590 |Transfer from Reserve - Recreation -
Total Recreation and Cultural Services (48,600)
TROUT CREEK COMMUNITY CENTRE REVENUE
Rentals TCCC
10-75-53700 | ice Rentals (60,000)
10-75-53710 | Hall Rentals (6,000)
Early Years {1,000)
10-75-53760 | Arena Floor Rentals (6,400)
10-75-53740 | Canteen Proceeds-Downstairs (1,000)
10-75-53730 | Kitchen proceeds- upstairs canteen (1,200)
10-75-53750 | Sign Rentals {2,700)
10-75-53715 | Hall Deposits -
Totai TCCC Rentals (78,300)
TCCC Other Revenues
10-75-57570 | Donations
10-75-53810 | Socials Revenue {15,000)
10-75-53815 | Bar Revenues {12,000)
10-75-53820 | Carnival (30,000)
10-75-53830 | TCCC Other Revenue .
10-75-51260 | Grant-NOHFC TCCC Revenue
10-75-53840 |levy (181,137)
Total TCCC Other Ravanuac ARG AR




Page 4

ACCOUNT #' ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
TOTAL TCCC REVENUES (316,437)
SPORTSPLEX REVENUES
10-80-53700 |lce Rentals {154,000)
10-80-53800 |Non-Resident User Fees (1,000)
10-80-53760 [Floor Rentals (700)
10-80-53710 |Hall Rentals (500)
10-80-53715 |Hall Deposit =
10-80-53750 |Sign Rentals -
10-80-53720 |Booth Rental (3.000)
10-80-53785 |Ball Hockey/Golf Tournament/Beer Festival Events (10,000}
10-80-53830 [Other Revenues -
10-80-53850 |Curling Club (20,000)
10-80-53855 |Curling Club Reserve Contribution -
10-80-53856 !Donations (200)
10-80-53786 |Bar Revenue-Sportsplex (25,000)
10-80-54510 | Transfer from Reserve-Sportsplex
10-10-54510 |Transfer from Reserve-Curling Club
10-80-53840 |levy (477,470)
Total Sportsplex Revenues (691,870)
Planning & Economic Development
10-70-58000 Planning Fess (15,000)
10-70-68110_|transfer from Welcome Signs Reserve
total Planning & Economic Development (15,000)
TOTAL REVENUES (7,167,575)
EXPENSES 2020 Budget
General Government
10-10-61000 |Council Salaries 40,000
10-10-61010 {Council Benefits
10-10-61020 |Council - Other Expenses 20,000
10-10-61030 |Donations 6,000
10-10-61040 |[Elections -
10-10-61050_|Advertising 6,000
10-10-61055 |Grant Expenses-modernization & efficiencies 60,000
10-10-61080 |Pay Equity/HR Consultant 4,000
10-10-61500 Administration Salaries 310,000
10-10-61510 [Admin-Benefits 28,000
10-10-61520 |Admin-RRSP/OMERS 36,500
10-10-61530 |Admin-Convention, Training _ 9,000
10-10-61540 |Admin-Office Supplies, Copies 20,000




Page 5

ACCOUNT #' ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-10-61550 |Admin-Telephones, cells, internet 8,500
10-10-61560 |Admin-Audit & Legal 25,000
10-10-61570 |Admin-Computers 62,000
10-10-61580 |Admin-Asset Management Program 60,000
10-10-61590 |Admin - Web Page/Community Channel 5,000
10-10-61600 | Admin-Postage/Courier/Advertising 25,000
10-10-61610 |Admin-Heat & Hydro 6,000
10-10-61640 |Admin-Office & Equipment Maint 8,000
10-10-61650 |Admin-Office Insurance - Building 8,200
10-10-61660 |Admin-Bank Charges & Interest (8,000)
10-10-61670 |Admin-Financial - Taxes Written Off 15,000
10-10-61675 |uncollectable debt 1,000
10-10-61680 |Admin-Office Capital 4,000
10-10-61690 |[MPAC 55,442
10-10-61700 (Transfer to Reserve - 250 Ciark -
10-10-61710_[Transfer to Reserve-General Funds
10-10-61720 |Admin - Public Relations/transfer of excess to reserve -
10-10-61730 |Memberships & Association Dues 5,000
10-10-61750 Capital- Development misc. Fairview -
10-10-67753 | 250 Clark-Building expenses
10-10-61754 1250 Clark-Program Expense
10-10-617556 |250 Clark Street-capital
10-10-61756 |250 Clark Street Loan Payments
10-10-61757 |Fitness Centre @250 Clark expense
10-10-61700 Transfer to reserve -250 Clark

Total General Government 820,842

250 Clark - new Accounts

10-12-61500 |250 Clark-Labour 30,000
10-12-61525 |250 Clark-Janitorial Expense 14,000
10-12-61641 1250 Clark-Building Maintenance 20,000
10-12-61650 1250 Clark-Insurance 18,000
10-12-61680 250 Clark-Building Capital 30,000

10-12-61700

250 Clark-transfer tn Raconas




Page 6

ACCOUNT #' ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-12-61753 {250 Clark-Utilities 25,000
10-12-61754 1250 Clark- Program Expenses 9,000
10-12-61755 ;250 Clark-Sponsored Program Expenses 5,000
10-12-61756 250 Clark-Loan Payments 127,671
10-12-61757 _|Fitness Centre @250 Clark expense 8,000
10-12-61758 |Fitness Centre @250 Clark-equipment capital 10,000
10-12-67510 |GAP Program Labour 24,000
10-12-67520 |GAP Program Expense 6,000
Total 250 Clark Expenses 326,671
Protection to Persons & Property
Fire Protection
10-15-62000 |Fire Dept. - Answering Service 4,000
10-15-62010 |Fire Dept.- Maintenance 10,000
10-15-62020 |Fire Department - Operations 62,000
10-15-62030 |Fire Dept. - Trucks 21,000
10-15-62040 |Fire Dept. - Equipment 20,000
10-15-62050 |Fire Dept.- Gratuity/Wardens 45,000
10-15-62061_|Fire Dept- Health & Safety 1,500
10-15-62060 |Fire Prevention 3,000
10-15-61500 |Fire Prevention & Chief-Salaries 92,000
10-15-62064 |Fire hydrants & maintenance & water usage 15,000
10-15-62070 |Capital - Fire Equipment 10,000
Capital- Fire Buildings -
10-15-62072 _|Fire Hall Loan Payment 75,103
10-15-62080 |Fire Dept.- Transfer to Reserve 40,000
Total Fire Protection 398,603
Policing
10-50-62500 |Policing - OPP 564,743
10-50-62510 |Police Services Board 2,000
Total Policin 566,743
Emergency Planning/By-Law Enforcement
10-50-62555 [911 and Signage 1,000
10-50-62550 |Emergency Planning 5,000
10-60-62560 |Emergency Management- CEMGC 27,000




Page 7

ACCOUNT #'J ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-50-62565 |Accessibility 3,500
10-50-62580 |By-Law Enforcement Officer/Prop Stds-wsib,etc wages & | 26,000
10-50-62585 |BYLAW/PROPERTY STANDARDS EXPENSE 3,500
10-50-62600 |Animal Control / Vet. Association 12,000
10-50-62720 |Health & Safety 6,000
total Emergency planning & By-law enforcement 84,000
Building
10-45-62700 |Building Inspector 121,000
10-45-62710 |Building Inspector - Matt/Supplies 8,000
10-45-62715 |CBO/Bylaw/Propstds vehicle exp 5,000
Total Building 134,000
PUBLIC WORKS
Street Lights
10-20-63000 |Street Lighting-Labour/Cont.Serv. 38,062
10-20-63010 |Street Lighting - Mat/Supplies -
10-20-63020 | Street Lighting - Power 15,000
10-20-63025 | Transfer to Street Light Reserves
total Street Lights 53,062
Public Works Administration
10-20-63040 _;Public Works - Training & Development 10,000
10-20-63050 |Public Works - Labour Expenses 340,000
10-20-63060 |Public Works - Mat/Supplies 65,000
10-20-63062 |Public Works Buildings Utilities 14,000
10-20-63085 |Public Works Admin. Mat/Supplies 4,000
10-20-63070 [Public Works-Health and Safety supplies 3,000
10-20-63080 |Public Works - 5 Year Study 15,000
total Public Works Administration 451,000
Sidewalks
10-20-63100 |Sidewalks - Labour 4,000
10-20-63110 | Sidewalks - Mat/Supplies 15,000
total Sidewalks 19,000
Bridges & Culverts
10-20-63200 |[Bridges & Culverts - Labour 13,000
10-20-63210 |Bridges & Culverts - Mat/Supplies 36,500
10-20-63220 [Brushing - Labour 10,000
10-20-63230 [Brushing - Materials/Supplies 3,000

#REF!

o date kotal



Page 8

ACCOUNT #

ACCOUNT

2020 Budget

10-20-63240 |Capital- Bridges & Culverts 52,500
total Bridges & Culverts 115,000
Roadside Maintenance
10-20-63260 |Roadside Maintenance - Labour 12,000
10-20-63270 {Roadside Maintenance - Mat/Supplies 64,000
total Roadside Maintenance 76,000
Hardtop Maintenance
10-20-63310 |Hardtop Maintenance - Labour 10,000
10-20-63320 |Hardtop Maintenance - Mat/Supplies 50,000
total Hardtop Maintenance 60,000
Loose Top Maintenance
10-20-63360 |Loose Top Maintenance - Labour 30,000
10-20-63370 [Loose Top Maintenance-Mat/Supplies 250,000
total Loose Top Maintenance 280,000
Winter Control
10-20-63410 [Winter Contro! - Labour 83,000
10-20-63420 |Winter Control - Mat/Supplies 75,000
total Winter Control 158,000
Safety Devices/CN Crossings
10-20-63460 |Safety Devices/CN - Labour 3,000
10-20-83470 |Safety Devices/CN - Mat/Supplies 55,000
tota! Safety Devices/CN Crossings 58,000
Equipment
10-20-63510 12011 Freightliner - Labour 4,000
10-20-63520 12011 Freightliner - Mat/Supplies 22,000
10-20-63530 12015 GMC 4X4 Truck-labour 1,500
10-20-63540 (2015 GMC 4X4 Truck -mat /supplies 7,500
10-20-63550 12013 Freightliner Truck - Labour 6,000
10-20-63560 {2013 Freightliner Truck - Mat/Supp 26,000
10-20-63570 12019 3/4 Ton GMC - labour 250
10-20-63580 /2019 3/4 ton GMC-Mat/supp 5,000
10-20-63590 12015 GMC Truck - Labour 750
10-20-63600 |2015 GMC Truck - Mat/Supp 5,000
10-20-63625 |Backhoe-CAT 420 -labour 750
10-20-63626 [Backhoe-CAT 420-material/supplies 7,500
10-20-63630 |96 Backhoe - Labour 750
10-20-63640 |96 Backhoe - Materials/Supplies 5,000
10-20-63650 199 Grader Champion - Labour 5,000
10-20-63660 |99 Grader Champion - Mat/Supplies 35,000
10-20-63670 [Float - Labour 500
10-20-63680 )Float ~ Materials/Supplies 500
10-20-63690 |Steamer - Labour 150
10-20-63700 |Steamer - Materials/Supplies 500
10-20-63710 |Trackless Kubota - sidewalk sander - Labour 2 0nn




Page &

Capital

8 7 |
|E
ACCOUNT #'9 : ACCOUNT g 2020 Budget |
10-20-63730_ |Lawn Equipment - Labour N 1,000 |
10-20-63740 |Lawn Equipment - Material/Supplies 4,000
10-20-63750 |Other Equipment - Labour 1,000
10-20-63760 |Other Equipment - Mat/Supplies 1,000
10-20-63770 |2014 Freightliner - Labour = 5,500 |
10-20-63780 |2014 Freightliner - Mat/Supplies 3 28,000 |
> total Equipment 181,150
Downtown-B.I.A. i .
10-20-63810_|Downtown - Labour 2,0_@_11
10-20-63820 |Downtown - Materials/Supplies B 5,000 |
__total Downtown- B.L.A. T'OOQ‘h

(10-20-63790

Equipment - Capital Purchases

14,000 [[half ton-crew |

10-20-63850

Capital - Labour

10-20-63860

Capital - Materials/Supplies

10-20-63870

Transfer for Infrastructure Reserve

251,000 |

20,000_r

10-20-63880 |Transfer to Reserve - Public Works Capital Equipment
[ HFulvenize, re-
ishape and
pave
ﬂsections of
10-20-63890 |Capital _ - ap 12,000 fKing St. W _|
reconstruct
10-20-63895 |Capital-Gas Tax Projects 166,000 ||Spetz St. |
10-20-63885 |Transfer to Reserve -Accrued Pit Closure Costs 4,500
N Total Capital 467,500
Crossing Guard _
10-50-63900 |Crossing Guard - Labour / Benefits = _ S,OOO_P
10-50-63910 |Crossing Guards - Mat/Supplies i -
| total Crossing Guard 5,000
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
Conservation Authority
10-50-64730 |NB Mattawa Conservation Levy 350
10-50-64740 [Source Protection Plan
total Conservation Authority 350
Garbage Collection
10-25-64800 |Garbage Collection - Labour 75,000
10-25-64810 |Garbage Collection - Mat/Supplies 2,000
10-25-64830 |Garbage Vehicle Expense 31,000
10-25-64840 |Garbage - Capital 115,000
10-25-64850 |Garbage - Transfer to Reserve 5,000
_ total Garbage Collection 228,000

_|Landfill Site i



Page 10

ACCOUNT #§ ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-25-64900 |Landfill Site - Labour 35,000
10-25-64910_|Landfill Site - Material/Supplies 50,000
10-25-64920 |Landfill Site Equipment Expenses 5,000
10-20-63610 {710 Backhee - Labour 800
10-20-63620 710 Backhoe - Material/Supplies 5,000
10-25-64930 |Hazardous Waste 3,000
10-25-64940 |Recycling Program 100,000
10-25-64950 jLandfili - Accrued Closure Costs 1,000
10-25-64960 |Landfill Site C of A Amendment 2,500
10-25-64965 |Landfill site Maintenance as per C of A 74,000
10-25-64970 |Landfill Site-Transfer to Reserve 10,000
Total Landfill Site 296,100
Health Services
10-60-65000 {Health Unit 116,219
total Health Services 116,219
Cemetery
10-85-65100_|Cemetery -Service Labour-interment 20,000
10-85-65110 |Cemetery - Service Materials-Interment 400
10-85-65120 |Cemetery- Maintenance Labour 10,000
10-85-65130 (Cemetery- Maintenance Material 5,000
10-85-65140 |Cemetery - Transfer to Reserve
10-85-65150_|Cemetery - Capital 2,000
10-85-65155 |Cemetery-Vault 400
10-85-65160 |Cemetery - Admin 2,000
total Cemetery 39,800
Ambulance
10-60-65220 (Land - Ambulance 99,259
total Ambulance 99,259
Medical Centre/Health Centres
10-60-65330 |Medical Centre -Powassan Town Square 60,000
10-60-65350 INORTH BAY REGIONAL HEALTH CENTRE 37,359
10-60-65360 |Sudbury Health Center 1,382
total Medical Centre/Health Centres 98,751
Social Services
10-60-66100 |District Social Services DSSAB 144,219
10-60-66200 [Eastholme - Levy 102,320
total Social Services 246,539
RECREATION
Parks
10-55-67000 |Parks - Labour 15,000
10-55-67005 _|Playground Inspection Expense 500
10-55-67010 |Parks - Material/Supplies 10,000
10-55-67020 [Parks - Canada Dav QO GrY




Page 11

ACCOUNT #' ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-55-67030 _|playground equipment 1,000
total Parks 38,500
Pool
10-55-67100 {Pool - Labour 35,000
10-55-67110 |Pool - Material and Supplies 16,000
10-55-67112  |Pool Utilities 8,000
10-55-67115 |Pool Chemicals 8,000
total Pool 67,000
Outdoor Rink/Beach/SHCC
10-55-67200 |Outdoor Rink - Labour -
10-55-67210 |Outdoor Rink - Materials/Supplies -
10-55-67300 jBeach - Labour 700
10-55-67310 |Beach - Material/Supplies 1,000
10-55-67400 |S.H.C.C. - Labour 400
10-55-67410 _[S.H.C.C. Materials/Supplies 6,500
total Outdoor Rink/Beach/SHCC 8,600
Recreation Administration
10-55-67500 {Recreation - Fund Raising 300
10-55-67510 [Recreation- GAP Program
10-55-67600 {Recreation - Admin - Labour 41,000
10-55-67610 |Recreation - General Exp.- Mat/Supplies 1,000
10-55-67620 |Recreation - Transfer to Reserve -
10-55-67640 |Recreation - Members Travel Expense -
10-55-67650 |Recreation Buildings. - Repair & Maint -
10-55-67900 |Recreation-Major Projects
10-55-67910 |Recreation-Rec.Iintern -
10-55-67920 |Recreation-Activities Expenses 4,000
total Recreation Administration 46,800
Recreation Facilities/Library
10-65-66030 |TC Seniors Hall - 4,000
10-80-67700 | Sportsplex Levy 477,470
10-75-67730 |T.C.C.C. Levy 181,137
70-10-61055 |Maple Syrup Festival expenses 15,000
10-65-67800 |Library Levy 97,110
10-65-67680 |Legion Building Labour/Mat/Supplies 35,000
10-65-61725 |Municipal Logo Merchandise expense 2,000
total Recreation Facilities/Library 811,717
TROUT CREEK COMMUNITY CENTRE EXPENSES
TCCC Salary & Benefits
10-75-61500 |TCCC Salaries 85,000
10-75-61510 [TCCC Benefits 12,000
10-75-61516 |Bar & Catering Labour tccc 10,000

Total Salaries & Benefits

107,000




Page 12

ACCOUNT #'S ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-75-61800 [Supplies 6,000
10-75-61820 |Maintenance 27,000
10-75-61610 [Hydro 25,000
10-75-61620 |Natural Gas 6,000
10-75-61550 [Telephone 2,500
10-75-61560 |Audit & Legal 1,850
10-75-61650 |TCCC Insurance 11,000
10-75-61830 {Carnival 15,000
10-75-61840 |Socials Expense - Spring 4,200
10-75-61850 |Canteen Expenses 750
10-75-61860 _|Kitchen/catering supplies-upstairs -
10-75-61865 |Bar Expenses 14,000
10-75-61870 |Fees 800
Total Operations TCCC 114,100
Capital TCCC
10-75-61880 |Capital TCCC 82,000
10-75-61883 |RINC Project-Loan Principal Expense 30,000
10-75-61884 {RINC Project-Loan Interest Expense 7,000
10-75-61890 | Transfer to TCCC Reserve 5,000
10-75-89999 |Surplus/Deficit TCCC (28,663)
Total Capital TCCC 95,337
Total TCCC Expenses 316,437
SPORTSPLEX EXPENSES
Salaries & Benefits
10-80-61500 |Salaries 165,000
10-80-61510 |Benefits 14,000
10-80-61515 | Sportsplex Bar Labour/Exp 6,000
10-80-61500 |Accrued Overtime -
10-80-61910 [Clothing Allowance 1,000
Total Salaries & Benefits 186,000
Operations
10-80-61610 |Hydro 90,000
10-80-61620 |Heat-Natural Gas 20,000
10-80-61630 }Heat-0il -
10-80-61920 |Water and Sewer 10,000
Total Operations 120,000
Equipment
10-80-61930 |Zamboni-Repairs & Maintenance 8,000
10-80-61940 |Equipment Repairs and Maintenance 7,000
10-80-61945 |Equipment Supplies 3,000
Total Equipment 18,000
Building

AM AA AaA=-




Page 13

ACCOUNT #" ACCOUNT 2020 Budget
10-80-61960 |Building-supplies 10,000
10-80-61650 {Insurance 18,000
10-80-61970 |Mat Rentals 1,000
10-80-61680 |Building Capital Improvements -
Total Building 89,000
Bar -Alcohol Expenses
10-80-61982 |Bar supplies /expenses 20,000
20,000
Administration
10-80-61550 |Telephone 1,200
10-80-61555 |Office Expenses 9,000
10-80-61560 _|Audit and Legal 2,000
10-80-61980 |Administration-office staff 2,000
10-80-61983 |Sportsplex Fundraising Expense 8,000
10-80-61985 |Staff training 5,000
10-80-61990 |zamboni/dehumidifier loan payments 21,000
10-80-61883 |Construction Loan Principal payments 110,000
10-80-61884 |Construction Loan Interest payments 25,000
Total Administration 183,200
Sportsplex Capital
10-80-61880 |Capital 10,000
10-80-61885_[Capital-& Grant Expenses -
10-80-61995 |Transfer to Reserves -
10-80-99999 |Surplus/Deficit Account 65,670
Total Sportsplex Capital 75,670
TOTAL SPORTSPLEX EXPENSES 691,870
Planning & Economic Development
10-70-68000 |Planning & Development - Labour 12,000
10-70-68005 |Planning Consultants 15,000
10-70-68010 |Planning & Development - Mat/Supp 15,000
10-70-68020 |Green Plan 250
10-70-68040 }Economic Development 12,500
10-70-68050 |Economic Development Position 8,000
transfer from Sign reserve -
10-70-68140 |Strategic Plan & Signs -
total Planning & Economic Development 62,750
B.L.A.[Tile Drainage/Misc.finance accounts
10-10-68400 [B.LA. - Labour -
10-10-68410 |B.I.A. - Material/Supplies 5,000
Surplus/Deficit Account less adjustments per audit (267,688)
total B.L.A./Tile Drainage/Misc.finance accounts (262,688)
TOTAL EXPENSES 7,167,575
TOTAL REVENUES (7,167,575)
GRAND TOTAL (REVENUES LESS EXPENSES) (0)
(Surplus)/Deficit




Powaszan

To: Clerk, Council

From: Public Works Engineer

Re: Trout Creek Sidewalk Rehabhilitation-MTO
BACKGROUND:

On January 7, 2020 at 10:00 am Deputy-Mayor Randy Hall, and Public Works Engineer-Codey
Munshaw, met with MTO officials to discuss the poor state of the sidewalks contained within the
MTO’s highway corridor, During this meeting the main points of interest discussed were:
Resident safety, sidewalk ownership, if there are any current agreements, and cost sharing.
During this discussion MTO noted that, usually an agreement is formed between the MTO and
the Municipality transferring the sidewalk ownership to the Municipality. The MTO would
generally ensure the sidewalks are up to standards prior to transferring ownership, and the

Municipality would henceforth be responsible for the maintenance and operations of this
sidewalk.

Following this meeting, MTO contacted Codey Munshaw, and requested a teleconference. The
MTO wanted the subject of the teleconference to be on the sidewalk replacement/rehabilitation
scope, even though Codey Munshaw suggested numerous times that a discussion of an
agreement for these sidewalks would be more beneficial. On February 18, 2020 the MTO and
the Municipality of Powassan engaged in a teleconference regarding the Trout Creek sidewalk
(please see the minutes from meeting attached). Also attached is a key map, showing the area
of sidewalk in question.

ANALYSIS:

The MTO suggested that the next step for the Municipality in this process is to, “a formal MOP
letter to MTO should be sent to MTO, to summarize the proposed MOP plans to accept future
sidewalk ownership with MTO approvals of an Encroachment Permit and Sidewalk Agreement,
but especially requesting Cost Sharing arrangements based on the revised cost estimates to be
submitted by CW (Clinton Williams)".

Attached is a formal draft ietter, to be sent to the MTO formally requesting: cost sharing,
sidewalk agreement, and Encroachment Permit for the Trout Creek sidewalks.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

I recommend that council review and give suggestion on the attached formal letter to be sent
to the Ministry of Transportation, regarding the Trout Creek Sidewalks.

il bt b ;
gy )/Qi

4
[



Respectfully submitted by,

Codey Munshaw, EIT: %_M Date: _le—cfn., '?’; 20720
Public Works Engineer




MINUTES

Project Information Meeting
Date prepared: February 26, 2020

G.W.P. 5202-18-00
Trout Creek Sidewalk Rehabilitation
Highway 522, east of Highway 524 easterly to west of Highway 522B

Township of South Himsworth
Municipality of Powassan

Duchesnay Boardroom, North Bay
Tuesday, February 18, 2020
11:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m.

Present: Ministry of Transportation - MTO

Clinton Williams, CW - Project Engineer (P&D)

Sylvie Lauzon, SL - Corridor Management Officer (CMO)
Municipality of Powassan - MOP

Randy Hall, RH ~ Deputy Mayor (DM)

Maureen Lang, ML - Chief Administrative Officer (CAO)
Codey Munshaw, CM - Public Works Engineer (PWE)

i. Introduction
CW welcomed all members in attendance,

2. Municipality of Powassan Present Request

CW briefly summarized that this meeting was to discuss the scape of work
associated with MOP’s request that MTO rehabilitate about 0.6 km of existing sidewalk
in the Trout Creek Community within the MTO Highway 522 ROW,

CW recalled that a similar request by MOP was presented in 2008 on this same
sidewalk location, but MOP had decided then not to proceed with the work. CW also
mentioned that MTO was not in the normal practice of constructing sidewalks within
MTO ROW, however, some considerations were possible if the necessary MTO

Encroachment Permit and Sidewalk Agreement were completed and mutually approved
by MTO Management.

3. General Discussions

RH mentioned that it was MOP’s full intention to acquire full ownership of the
sidewalk with the necessary Permit and Agreement and conditions for all future
maintenance and repairs; however, RH requested some Cost Sharing arrangement with
MTO to rehabilitate/reconstruct the present poor condition to standard designs. CW
commented that this approach was indeed a progressive one by MOP, but Cost Sharing

was also an important agreement term to be further discussed and approved by MTO
Management.



CM requested that the entire length of 0.6 km be widen to standard 1.5 m width;
and, if feasible that the south section of sidewalk be constructed on the northside only.
RH agreed that this was an important safety consideration to minimize pedestrians having
to cross Highway 522 unnecessarily. RH also added that all other impacting factors such
as property and utilities would have to be considered before a firm decision is made here.

CW mentioned an estimated $300,000 to cover full costs for design, construction
(1.5 m wide) and supervision of the present poor condition sidewalk areas (480 m). This
cost estimate would be increased if MOP require the entire length of sidewalk (587 m)
reconstructed to standard width (1.5 m wide) and also switched from south to north only,
due to safety reasons. CW will revise the estimated costs and forward soon.

CW remarked that this rehab work could possibly be included under a 2022 year
contract to rehab this section of Highway 522, He also disclosed that if MOP should
decide not to accept ownership of the sidewalk, that there was also an option for MTO to
remove and landscape the extremely poor conditioned sidewalk due to safety concemns.
RH replied that MOP considered the sidewalk as an asset to pedestrians/property owners,
and so all efforts to maintain its existence should be seriously considered.

Post-meeting addition: (i) CW estimated a total $75,000 to fully reconstruct in its present
location, and to supervise the remaining 107m of south sidewalk with standard 1.5m
width. (i) No estimate was proposed at this stage for the requested option of
relocating/reconstructing all the new sidewalk entirely on the north side of Highway 522.
This requested option far exceeded the expected scope of reconstructing the existing
sidewalk in its present location, which required more investigation to be even considered
an option here.

4. MTO - Corridor Management Encroachment Permit Requirements &
Agreement

SL explained that it was not MTO’s mandate to construct, re-construct, maintain
or repair sidewalks. SL also added that in other municipalities where there were
sidewalks within a provincial highway ROW, this was all done by the municipality at
their cost.

SL also reaffirmed that MOP should acquire fuill ownership of all new sidewalk
areas within the MTO ROW of Highway 522, by way of the approval of an
Encroachment Permit and Sidewalk Agreement. This will cover all requirements under
MOP responsibilities for future maintenance/snow removals/general repairs.

S. Final Questions & Answers

RH asked about next steps from here. CW suggested that a formal MOP letter to
MTO should be sent to MTO, to summarize the proposed MOP plans to accept future
sidewalk full ownership with MTO approvals of an Encroachment Permit and Sidewalk
Agreement, but especially requesting Cost Sharing arrangements based on the revised
cost estimates to be submitted by CW.

6. End of Meeting
CW thanked ali for attending,






: The Municipality of

lPowaszan

To: Junaid Asphar P.Eng, and Eric Doidge

From: The Municipality of Powassan - Public Works Engineer
Re: Trout Creek Sidewalk Replacement

Date: March 13, 2020

To whom this may concern,

On behalf of the Municipality of Powassan, I would like to thank the Ministry of Transportation
(MTO) staff for their continued communication, and ongoing efforts to work with the
Municipality; regarding the ongoing efforts to improve the sidewalks along Highway 522 (from
Barrett St to approximately 587m west of Barrett St) in the Town of Trout Creek.

To further these ongoing efforts, the Municipality of Powassan wishes to enter into agreements
with the Ministry of Transportation for: sidewalk agreement/future ownership, encroachment
permits, and cost sharing agreements.

Sidewalk Agreement:

During the conversation between the Ministry and Municipality thus far, there has been no
evidence of any previous or standing agreement for this section of sidewalk, between the
Ministry and the Municipality. The Municipality of Powassan would like to enter into an
agreement (to term that shall be agreeable to both parties, and agreed upon at a later date),
with the Ministry of Transportation; accepting ownership, and conduction operations on this
section of sidewalk; with the understanding that these sidewalks will meet current standard,
specifications, and regulations mandated by the province, prior to the Municipality taking
ownership. Obviously at this point in time, there is still a need for further discussion to proceed

with this agreement, and the Municipality of Powassan looks forward to working with the
Ministry in this endeavour.

Encroachment Permit:

The sections of sidewalk in question are within the Ministry of Transportation roadway right-of-
way, and will require the Ministry’s corridor management approval prior to any action being
taking toward improving these sidewatks. That being said, it is the Municipality of Powassan’s
understanding, that the MTO is planning on completing some rehabilitation work on Highway
522 between Commanda and Barret St in Trout Creek. It is the belief of the Municipality of
Powassan, that cooperation and planning between our organization could be to our mutual
benefit, as the project nears construction. Further to this, the Municipality of Powassan would
like to offer its support to the Ministry of Transportation in disposing various construction
materials. The Municipality can assist the Ministry in meeting their sustainability and
environmental goals, as during the 2019 season, the Municipality reused (or has the materials
readily available to reuse) 100% of the materials removed from our roadways during capital
projects. We achieved this by using excavated aggregate materials as cover materials at our
landfili (clay materials were separated as best as possible to be later used during the
construction of any necessary impenetrable barriers), the asphalt was either reused through
pulverization and full depth reclamation or stockpiled to be later crushed into RAP for our
roadway maintenance (washouts on gravel roadways), and our concrete has been stockpiled



and is budgeted to be crushed into RCA (we are going to be requesting that the materials are
crushed into an aggregate resembling the sieve analysis propertied of granular ‘B’ type II),
Using techniques such mentioned above, the Municipality would be prepared to assist in
repurposing construction materials from this project.

Cost Sharing:

This section of sidewalk in question is currently within the MTO’s right-of-way (and corridor
management). This sidewalk does not meet the legislated minimum maintenance standards,
and there is no current agreement for the Municipality to maintain or provide operations on this
section of sidewalk. The MTO has mentioned that they could potentially remove this section of
sidewalk altogether, however currently the majority of residents walking this area use the side
of the roadway because the sidewalks are in such a state of disrepair. So I do not believe that
removing the sidewalks would be in the best interest of our residents, or the MTO (as residents
will continue to walk on the side of the roadway, causing potential safety concerns for
pedestrians and motorists alike).

During Randy Hall and my original meetings with MTO management, it was noted that generally
the MTO brought the sidewalks up to standards, and an agreement is usually then formed with
the Municipality to take ownership of, and maintain this infrastructure. This would lead the
Municipality to believe that since there is no current agreement between our organizations (as
far as I have been told by the MTO), the MTO should bring these sidewalks up to standards so
the Municipality can take ownership of them. During my last teleconference with the MTO, it did
not sound as though the MTO had any interest in doing this. The Municipality of Powassan is a
small community, and based on MTO estimates the replacement of these sidewalks would
constitute 12.5% of our annual municipal tax levy. The Municipality of Powassan is faced with a
large amount of deteriorating infrastructure nearing its end of useful life ; and cannot afford to
invest in projects that use this much of our resources, without the help of other government
agencies. If the MTO are unwilling to pay in full or in part some portion of this project, perhaps
there is a way we can work together to receive funding from other initiatives.

Under page 16 of 24 in the Ministry of Transportations 2020-2021 connecting links program, the
section of Highway 522 from Barret St to Hwy 522B in the Township of Trout Creek is listed as
a connecting link. This connecting link immediately joins with the proposed contract limit of the
MTO’s planned rehabilitation work to Hwy 522 in 2022. Now, under the connecting link’s
program Appendix 3 “"Scope of Eligible Work — Detailed”, the replacement of sidewalks is eligible
if a project is proposed to have changes in grade or alignment. I understand that the MTO only
has so much money allotted for MTO managed capital projects. However, the potential from
additional funding programs (even if it is from a separate MTO budgeting stream), could be
highly beneficial to the MTO and Municipality in the completion of this project.

The Ministry of Transportation sustainability implementation plan’s vision statement, reads as
follows: “To be a world leader in moving people and goods safely, efficiently and sustainably, to
support a globally competitive economy and high quality of life”. Additionally, in this plan the
MTO states that they hope to achieve this through: Increased transit ridership, promote a
multimodal transportation network to support the efficient movement of people and goods,
promote road safety in order to remain among the safest jurisdictions in North America,
improve Ontario’s highways, bridges and border infrastructure, and integrate the principle of
sustainability into the ministry’s decision making, programs, policies and operations.

In summary, we are but two organizations, with similar common goals. It is the Municipality of
Powassan’s goal to provide its residents with a high quality of life, through the use of safe,



reliable, sustainable infrastructure that supports an active lifestyle for its residents. I believe
that this is a great opportunity for the Ministry and the Municipality to work together, and
deliver a project that exceeds our goals and expectations, while also building a strong and
mutually respected relationship between our organizations. To this endeavour, the Municipality
of Powassan looks forward to building a strong relationship with the Ministry of Transportation,
as we work together to achieve our common goals.

Respectfully submitted by,

Codey Munshaw, EIT: 4%5 z 4 _— , Date: Mearol 13, 2020
Public Works Engineer




Agonce Ontarienne Des Eaux

Northeastern Ontario Region QUARTERLY OPERAT!ONS RE PO RT

..._,..{___ \ Ontario Clean Water Agency PowaAssAN WATER & WASTEWATER SYSTEMS
g

SYSTEM OVERVIEW January 1% to March 317 , 2020

OPERATIONAL HIGHUIGHTS

Drinking Water System
* The water treatment system operated well during the first quarter.

¢ Well #2 air issues due to leak somewhere in the system, causing false flow peaks on start-up and air

hammer on pipes as the air evacuates. Temporarily taken offline until well technician onsite to
investigate issue.

Wastewater Treatment

» The wastewater treatment system performed well during the first quarter.

CAPITAL PLAN PROGRESS

Drinking Water System
* Certified well technicians called in for troubleshooting to locate and repair air leak that caused
false flow peaks and air hammer mentioned above. The technicians eventually pulled the pump
from Well #2 to find water spraying from a leak within the pump itself. Powassan had recently

purchased a spare pump for this well in 2019 which was used as the replacement. The well was
super-chlorinated, tested and sampled before being returned to service.

¢ Purchased replacement radio communication system to have on spare. All 3 Pribusin radios
currently in use are obsolete and can no longer be repaired due to lack of available parts.

Wastewater Treatment System
* Service technicians called in for troubleshooting Clark St. generator fail to start.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

See Appendix A - Work Order summary for water treatment plant {WTP)‘
See Appendix B - Work Order summary for wastewater treatment lagoon (WWTL)

CALL-OUT SUMMARY

See Appendix C - Call-out Report for WTP
See Appendix D - Call-out Report for WWTL

Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report Page-l.of 9

May_S/301
L1d=t |



Agence Ontarienne Des Eaux

Northeastern Ontario Region QUARTERLY OPE RAT'O NS REPORT

.._,..{_____ \ Ontarlo Clean Water Agency PowAssAN WATER & WASTEWATER SYSTEMS
g

ReGuLATORY

*  All drinking water samples required under O. Regulation 170/03 were collected and tested in the first
quarter of 2020 and all results fell within regulatory limits.

* The Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks {MECP) performed an annual inspection on
December 17, 2019. The inspection included a physical assessment of the Powassan Water Treatment
Plant and a document review. The inspection report identified three non-compliance issues. All have
been addressed, final inspection rating of 87.27%.

® Due to communication issues with the Reservoir, an overflow occurred. See details below.
® 2019 annual report completed February 21, 2020.
® Permit to take Water (PTTW) reporting completed February 19, 2020,

* Quarterly trihalomethanes (THM), haloacetic acids (HAA), Nitrate and Nitrite sampling completed January
27, 2020.

*  No MECP or Ministry of Labour (MOL) inspections conducted this quarter,

* Allrequired sewage samples required under the system'’s Environmental Compliance Approval {(ECA) were
collected and tested in the first quarter of 2020.

® 2019 annual sewage report completed January 14, 2020.

¢ Annual WSER reporting completed.

INCIDENTS AND COMPLAINTS

Powassan Drinking Water System

Incident Reservoir Overflow (Spitl)
Date lanuary 17, 202_0
i Details Type of Incident: Spill

SACRef No.: 4578-BKXQ2Y

Start Date & Time: January 17, 2020 at 2030 hours

Termination: January 18, 2020 at 1230 hours

Duration: 16 hours

! Approximate volume: 650 m?

| Details: Reservoir spilled chlorinated water through overflow following re-
establishment of radio frequency communication between well house and
reservoir. Issue occurred with instrument level span values out of sync with well
house resulting in incorrect value.

Receiver: N/A

Actions:  Well pump deactivated immediately upon arrival, Following
confirmation of spill and assessment of reservoir tevel transducer value, control
set-points were adjusted for reservoir level well pump start and stop.
instrument span corrected.

Reporting: Verbal & written reports to MOE SAC, faxed to EC as required, also
notification made to local MECP inspector Vesna Alimpic. |

Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report Page 2 of 9



f...____,_..\ Ontario Clean Water Agency PowAssAN WATER & WASTEWATER SYSTEMS
"

Agonce Ontarlenna Des Eaux

Northeastern Ontario Region QUARTE RLY OPE RAT' ONS RE PO RT

Powassan Waostewater System

Incident
Date
Details

HEALTH AND SAFETY

o Staff training completed on WHMIS
¢ Staff training completed on Transportation of Dangerous Goods.

» Staff training completed on the "Don’t Walk By” Program.

PowAssAN DRINKING WATER SYSTEM PERFORMANCE

See Appendix E — Performance Assessment Report Water

PowASSAN WASTEWATER TREATMENT LAGOON — WASTEWATER FLOW SUMMARY

See Appendix F - Performance Assessment Report Wastewater

Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report Page 3of 9



£ _\ Ontario Clean Water Agancy PowassAaN WATER & WASTEWATER SYSTEMS
== Agence Ontarienne Des Eaux
Northeastern Ontario Region QUARTERLY OPERATIONS REPORT

Appendix A - Work Order Summary for WTP

Powassan Water & Wastewater Systems - Quarterly Operations Report Page 4 of 9



(geeps'cs) 0008 ANIWINDI- 1430 3414
(gc'eprs'es) 0003 ANINAND3~ Ld3A FHIS
(zagzo'es) 0008 SHINML~ 1430 JdId
(zg8z0'28) 000§ SMOMYL-1d20 THI4
(Zg'gzo'ze)  000% SHINYL-Ld3Q IS
_ I # "yl

1 ot i G.QZImul |

| AT ool

_ v , _R _ 30 3400}
(62'9¥6'28)  00°0% $3NddNs 3440
(G1'99tv'ge8) 00°0% SHALNAWOD
(95'z98°28)  00'0% ddd div
{99'19v"18) 0003 13div
(€9909'1$) 0008 Ld drv
(oroce’ss) 0008 L4 dre
T 7S5 00°0% gISM diY
¥Z¥S5% 00°0% gISM drY
(rr269'e8) 0003 "OSIW-'AY G3¥Y3430
(ot'ves'szs) 0008 ONIQUNS-HYYID 052
(£tgor'es) o008 WYHO0Yd-¥YYD 052
(629v6'28) 0008 $3NddNS 321440
(6:9v6'28) 0008 S3ddns 321440
(2zve1's8)  000% SHIAWO div
(ZzpEL'ss) 0003 SHIAWO dry
0£'2.6'L% 00°0% 1H3 div
0£'zL6'LS 00'08 1H3a d
esueeg AlLA ¢ psjabpng uonduasa unoasy

£5°Z6%

0t029-61-01 CYAVAR S 6L L18 02/ 2P0 QN2 ¥v349 ONY LNIVd 0Z/1Ziv0 06/GE
0r0Z9-GL-0t 62'+Z8 68 #2% 0Z/L21%0 SINLLO0T AVHdS 0Z/1Z2/F0 9/£5¢
0€029-51-0! £9°.% £8'2% 0Z/L 20 aINTd IXNvEa 02/ 2P0 £555¢
0£0Z9-5L-0L ar'£2s o9 €28 0Z/LLIF0 INOLIDV "HANYITD 0T/Li0 216256€
0£0Z9-51-01 95'81LE 95'81$ 0Z/LLF0 SHIANHSIYS HIY 'INOD 009D 0Z/LLF0 2025¢
0Z1 HOZ ‘NO° NVSSYMOd ‘8P XOH 'O'd ‘'SLHVd OLNV ? IHYMOUVH JNOH NVSSYMOd 1268
ININLHEVH3A Jdld
L5'P10'6P$ LINIAUNYIAOD TVHINTD [B10L
vLps
ov519-0L-01 ZTLZYS TLTKS 02/ 4%0 dOL dV1 YIISIIO Y »¥O4 9nH SN 0Z/LLv0 £022
0ZI HOd 'NO ‘NVYSSYMOd ‘3AY SNIIND 82 “HI1SID IrTHVHI oLyoL
SZ'6v6'LS
0L5LS0L-0L 9e'66L 1% 92662 1$ 0Z/1 20 WYdS LLNY STYLLNISSI TIVIN 14D 0Z/12/40 966€E1-02
‘NO ‘WYHMHVIN ‘SAINAO ¥31LNE 13INOTOD L 'SIDIANIS 0HdSIg zrzoL
£8°985°51$
0£ZEL-01-0L Z9EL9'PS ZoEL9'PS 0z 20 0Z0Z/L LY 01 0Z0Z/it W0y (josked 0Z/1Z/¥0 Zi0lyd
0ZZEE-01-01 ¥5'G06°1% ¥5'506°'LS ozizro 0202/ Lib 01 DZ0Z/b/p woy |01ked 0Z/12/v0 Z10LYd
0LZEE-0L-0} L6'1EL'T8 15728128 0ZNZHFD 0202/ LiF 0 0202/t woly [joiked 02/1.2/70 Z10lHd
00zZEE-01-01 0669298 06'69Z'0% 0zZ/teo 0202/4 LiF 01 0202/t woy [joked 0Z/1Z170 ZL0iHd
*** 'SNOLLONAIA TI0HAVd - IVHINIS H3AIZ03Y 0806
Tl isg'es
DEELE-0L-0L ££'€19°1% £E'CL9'LS 02/L2/¥0 0Z0Z/L 1P O3 DZ0Tpiv Wl |uked OZ/LZIv0 ZLoLyd
0££EE-01-01 6E¥89°'1% 6£°v89'1S 02/20/#0 0Z0Z/E1Y O} 0Z0Z/1LZIE Woy |jcaked 0Z/L0/%0 LLOLHd
SAZ MSW ‘NO “ OLNOYOL 'V NOLLYLS ‘Sti¥ XO8 "0'd ‘HVOS IONVHNSNI B ALIAVS IOV IdNUOM oros
ote9ts
S155€-01-04 94'99¢$ ot'99gs 02/ 240 TYLNIY 3ON3L 02/12/00 900-1Z0LLGLL
625 MSW 'NO "OLNOYOL 'V NOLLY.LS TvLSOd ‘025F X089 "O'd ‘8£9Z5L O/ 'YAYNVYD 30 STVLNIY J2LINN +206
5°E61'TS
£5219-0L-0 86'658't$ 86'668'1% 02/L1L1¥0 ZrL1-0S2 ® SYO 0Z/LLIVD  LPL6L9T 656869
ZO0 MSW ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL ‘v NLS 1007 X089 Od ‘SYD NOINN £206
99'692¢
$6219-01-0! S8'/01% 58 201% Oz LIV NYOD dOd 02/LLiP0 BL1GE
o¥519-0L-01 oz'62¢ 0Z'62$ ozZNZIv0 SOVE IOVEUYD 0Z/12/+0 01958
orGLe01L-01 £9°18% £9°/€9 0zZ/LTIV0 SAYOD NOINILXT 02/12v0 LDESE
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ' NYSSVYMOd ‘8l XO8 '0'd ‘SLHVd OLNY 2 IHYMOUVH IWOH NVSSVMOd 2268
0Z°05£'81$
CLEEE-CL-0L 09'921'6% 09'9Z1'6% 0Z/LZIv0 0Z0Z/L Liv 0} 0Z0Z/p/y Wol |10iked 0Z/1 210 ZLoLyd
OLEES-0L-CIL 09°€2Z'6% 09'cZZ'6%$ 02/£01%0 0202/5ir 01 0202/1.2/€ Wy jjoifed 0Z/L0/40 L1401 dd
LWE AZW ‘NO 'OLNOHOL ‘LOLL ALINS ‘LOLL JLINS §2561 X08 '0O'd ‘SHIWO £068
60'520'2%
0zZeLe-01-01 62°600°1$ 62°600°1% DZNZHO 0Z0Z/L L 01 0Z0ZYY WoY |0iked 0Z/LZ/¥0 ZLotdd
022LE-0L-01 961018 9.°610'1% 02/L0iv0 0Z0Z/S1F ©) 0Z0Z/12/E Woy joiked 0Z/L0/b0 LLotHd
638 HL1'NO ‘' VMVYHSO ‘(LH3) 029 X049 'O°d 'LH3 - 3ONVNIJ 40 H3LSINIW g¥88
INFWUNYIA0O TVHINITO
JaquinN JunoJdy  Juy parocaddy  Juy ad0Au|]  @jeq ang uonduossag ajeq JaquinNeoau|
JOPUSA

{poday feacuddy jrounosn)
uny anbayn lieunuioid d/v
uBSSEMO4 J0O Apjediunyy

wepg:g QZoLRLN



U

01°vS$
(cGe61'68)  000% -SMHOM OITdNnd 090£9-02-01 01'¥5$ 0L +5% 021210 STIVLNTY ¥IANNAD 02/ 2/v0 O1186/56
LIS 1IN ‘NO 'HONOHOBHYIS ‘A NOILVLS 00¥ X08 Od ‘NOLLNSIHLSIA ¥IVXYd [4:155
9.°29/9
sv”mn_“na 00°0% $931789 SMHOM 2Ndnd Z9088-02-01 9E¥51E 9ePs1S 0Z/LLIVD 0681 - SV TVHNLYN SdOHS Md 0Z/LLIP0  LPLBL9Z 6256869
(eveei'es)  ooo$ $9a18 SMNOM 2Nand Z90€8-02-01 0¥'209% 0t'809% 0zT/LLIv0 0EEZ - SYD TYHNLYN SAOHS Md 0Z/21/v0 1P 16292 6/56869
290 MSW ‘NO ‘OLNONOL 'V NLS 100 XO8 Od ‘SYD NOINN £206
95 LS
Ammummxma 000% -SMHOM ONand 080£9-02-01 ¥£° 028 ye'0zs 01290 Wooyd HSNd 0Z/LE/¥0 £E86E
Gm.mmrma 00'0$ -SMYOM Dngnd 090€9-02-0L 09878 09'8¥s 0Z/LTIY0 SIANOTD 'HANVIALD 0Z/LZ/40 6895¢
ﬁm.mmr%v 00'0% -SHXHOM 2I7and 090£9-0Z-0L 99'L¥% 99°Lp$ 0Z/12/%0 SIHOIT 0Z/12/0 8195¢
Amm.mm_,_me 00°0$ -SYYOM 2IT1aNnd 090£9-02-0} (TR 4% 3 LOrLS 0Z/1Z10 S13aMOVHT S13HS 0Z/1240 6¥55E
(6666 __oe 0008 -SYHOM JIand 090£9-02-01 8L¥Le gL'rLS 0220 WOOHI NHOD 02/12/+0 88¥ce
Gm“mmrm@ 00°0$ “SYHOM D118Nd 090£9-0Z-01 Fadoras ¥ 9zs 0zZ/12iv0 IN3TEAd3Y 02/12/40 LitGE
?,m.mm—_mﬂ 00°0% “SYMHOM D1ENd 090£9-0Z-01 1198 1193 0zZ/12/+0 S3IAOTO ANY H3INVITD 0Z/1Z/40 8ZYSE
ﬁm.om__m@ 0008 “SXHOM ON8nd 090£9-02-01 52518 PSTGLS 021210 S$I3MOL dOHS 02/1210 20¥5E
am.om_.ma 000§ -SMH0M DIand 080€9-02-04 06'+5$ 06'¥5% 02120 SHD0T Q¥d ANV NIvHD 0Z/1Z/40 LLESE
(cs'661'68)  00°0% -SMHOM Dnand 080£9-02-01 PSLES ¥51ES 021210 SINVL INVIOH 0Z/12H0 FPEGE
{¢c66L'68) 0003 -SMHOM 2Nand 090€£9-02-01 ¥0cs ¥0'€$ 0zZ/LEIV0 DONITNYD 02/L2H0 POLGE
0ZI HOd ‘NO‘ NVYSSVYMOd ‘8tl XOS "0'd ‘SLYVd OLNV B SHYMORYH IWOH NVSSYMOd 1268
ir192%
(cs'661'68)  000% -SHHOM 2ITaNnd 080£9-02-01 Ly L978 L¥'1928 0T/LLIv0 SIYLNIH WHOJINN Md 0Z/LL/F0 850%1¢
- 9Z¢ 32d 'NO * AMNAANS ‘AY0Y NINDNODTV 0£ZZ ‘TOIAHAS WHOHINN NEIHLHON 2688
S§'69¢
{r6'606'68)  00°0% “HINMHOI3YY 1102 0Z5£9-02-01 S8c9Es S8'9ES 0z ZIvD S1HVYd ANV SHIVAIY HANTILHDITNL 0Z/12/40  LBLE'E69L 2ri9vT
+90 ¥1d ‘NO ‘AVE HLIMON ‘24N0D IDHIANNOD 0F ‘AVE HLEON ¥IANINLHODIFYL 1898
SHMHOM 2119Nd
£6'720'Z8 T E[ TRV ZEERERLLTY
96'822$
(gceps'cs)  000% INIWNDINDI- Ld3a -1+ Ov0Ze-51-01 096'922% 96'82Z$ 0Z/L0/¥0 SYHSYW 0Z/2 1170 vivl
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘NYSSYMOd ‘082 X08 'O'd ‘ANVJINOD LNIHS 9Ng TVNIDIHO 3HL ZEPOL
00°02Z$
(ra'z09s$) 00'0% ONIYIMSNY "Ld3J THI4 000Z9-51-01 00°0zZZ$ 00°022% 0Z/LLIPD FOAYIS ONIYIMSNY "1d3a 3414 0Z/21/%0 £0-0202
V0 gld 'NO ‘Av8 HLHON 'IAINA FOVTTI0D 0§ ‘OHUEN O/D ‘SHLNID SNOILYDINNNINOD IONYINENY TV INID AVE HLINON LozZoL
15°€8Z$
{ra'900°L18) 0003 SNOLLYHIdO-" 1430 3414 02029-61-01 15°€8Z% 15'€92% 02Z/121v0 NOILO3dSN| Jdid 02/12170 29911
£XZ9id ‘NO ‘AVE HLHON ‘v¥ ‘M 13341S NIVIN Z6%1 ‘2417 HVLS A8 ALIJIVS YAYNVYI SNVIL S£00L
51°226$
(¥5'990°11$) 0008 SNOLLYHIJO- 1430 FHId 0Z029-51-01 512263 §1°226% 027220 1d30 343 8ISM 0Z/2Z/0  3HI4 0202 ddY
£AZ MSI ‘NO * OLNOYOL 'Y NOILYLS ‘SLLY XO8 '0'd 'QuVOE 3ONVHENSNI ‘2 ALIAVS 3OV IdMNEOM otos
8277Z¢$
{r5'990°'L1$) 0008 SNOLLYHIJO- 1430 3x1d 02029-51-01 8.°2Z8% 8472 02/LLI0 £9¥Z - SVO TvUNLYN Q401 0Z/4LP0 LY IL6.9Z 6.56869
90 MSI ‘NO ‘OLNOHOL ‘¥ NLS $00¥ X089 Od ‘SYD NOINN £206
asuejeg QLA £ patabpng uondussaq UNoRY Jaquinn Junesoy  Jwy paaouddy  Juiy 9210AU|  3jeq ang uonduossag aeg ABCWNNSACAU|

{Lioday feaosddy jrounon)
uny enbay Areunuipoid d/v
uesSSEMOd JO Apjedioiunpy wepeg 0Z0ZRIN



< 61 Lv$ H3IM3s (ejol

6L iv$
{9°9¥18%) 0008 -ISNOHdWNG ¥3M3S OLLFG-OF-0L 61'iv% 6L LvS OZ/ILLP0  BSZ6 - SYD TVHNLYN ISNOHAWN ¥IAMIS 02/21/v0  ¥L629T 6156869
ZO0 MSW ‘NO ‘OLNOHOL ‘¥ N1S LOOY XO8 Od ‘SYD NOINN £206
d3M3S
S¥'95% H3ILVYM [eloL
81928
(z5'265%) 00'08$ -NOILNAM1SIA ¥3LYM 0£SH9-0E-01 81'92% 81'9z% OZ/LLP0 OF6.4 - SYO TVHNLYN YA IVHOW vE 0Z/L1L/¥0  L¥1619T 6/56869
90 MSI ‘NO ‘'OLNOYOL 'V NLS L00¥ XO8 Od ‘S¥D NOINN £206
1Z'0£%
(z5°z6¢€8) 00°0$ -NOILNAIYLSIO 43 1YM 0E5¥9-0€-01 Fraiias 1Z0£8 0ZILLIV0 SYCLIINNOD ISOH 0Z/L1Liv0 LB81GE
0Z1 Hod ‘NO ' NVYSSYMOd ‘8Pl XOS '0'd 'S1N¥VYd OLNY 7 IJUVYMOUVYH INOH NYSSYMOd L1268
HILVM
09'652'L€$ INIFWNOYIANST |BJOL
L0'£80°62$
(gs'9rL'01$) 00°0% -311S TH4aNV 0L6¥S5Z-0l 10'€80'623 10'€80'628  OZ/LLIYD ONIANIZD TUIANYT 0Z/L 1140 §5ZZ0L
+ZZ BEN ‘NO ‘VHINTT ‘HLHON 133615 HNH1HEY 0092 "ONIONIYS 43 TLUS {174 1]
STEYS
(86°9PL'0LS) 000$ -3US THAANYT OLBP9-5Z-01 SZ'ers ST'eF$ 0Z/L2i0 NOILDIJSNI 3x1d 0Z/12/0 999t
€XZdld ‘NO 'AVE HLYON ‘V¥ ‘M L3341S NIVIN Z6¥1 ‘3411 MVLS A ALIHVS VAVNYD SNV S£001
59°217%
(zeszez'z1s) 0003 -ALIS TNHaNVT G96%9-G2-01 59'2L28 692128 ¥ 40 3 34 IONYNILNIVA-I LIS THIANYT 0Z/1 20 995€L
S92 9ld ‘NO 'AVE HLHON "LS3M 1334LS NIYIN 0591 ‘ONILTNSNOD a10S31d LHOINM £926
9g91$
(iz662'78)  000% FIDIHIA IOVEHYD 0E8YS-GZ-0l 9t ols 9918 0ZN2H0 SIA0TD 0T/ 20 21€5¢
0Z1 Hod ‘NO ‘ NVYSSYMOd ‘8%l X08 ‘O'd ‘'S1dvd OLNY B SMVMAYYH JWOH NYSSYMOd 1z68
££688'LS
: AEE
(s6'9vc'0i$) 0008 -JUS TNSANYT 0LEPS-GZ-01 £C°658'1% £C'6E8' 1S 0Z/LEIP0 HOLOYDWOD GNY T3AVES TIHANY 02/L 270 £6irF
0Z1 Hod ‘NO * NVSSVMOJ ‘PES AVMHOIH 811 "ONILYAVIXT SIHONH NYAT 1548
ININNOHIANT
£6°LYL'6$ SHHMOM 2118Nnd 1ejol
8Z°8v6%
(zovii'els) o00% “IOHINOD HIALNIM 0Z¥eg-0zZ-01L 878763 eT'8v68 0ZILLIPOD S3avd 0Z/21iv0 S6Y661
18} $57 ‘NO ‘'VONVSSISSIN ‘GVOH MINA Z2ZZ ‘NOLHOIZND adD 08201
80°'£Z¢3
(55'661'6%)  000S ~SYHOM 2N8Nd 090£9-0Z-01 20'¢2es 80'€Zes 0ZNeo NOILD3JSNI 314 0Z/12/+0 £0LLL
£XZH9ld ‘NO 'AVE HLHON Vb ‘M LIIHLS NIVIN Z6¥1 ‘3417 ¥VLS A ALIJVS YOVNYI SNYHL SEo0t
£8°659°'0%
000% 000% dOLauvH 02££9-0Z-0 £8'€59'9% £8°659'0% 0Z/LLIP0 XA Q100 YIALNIM GZ/ZLF0  ZHBLO 12 NO-0Z
9rg HIN ‘NO ‘AOAIMEINYD ‘9# L0Z JLINS ‘GH WI1IJSIH SZP ‘SHHOM VLVHILS 2216
aosuepeg Qla ¢ paebpng uonduasag unolay JAQUINN Junosay  Juy paacsddy Jwy adioau]  ajeq ang uonduasaqg ajeq 19QuINNasI0oAU|

{oday teaocsddy jrounon)
uny snboays Aieujwijaid d/v
uessemod jo Ayjediojunyy weyE:g  0Z02TLNY



(go'vez'19)

(r09ez' L)

{€9'2z5's$)

(80°980'Z$)
(80°980'2¢$)

(z67+E9'29)

ooos

(¢ '866$)

{¥c°866%)
(gL 82¢8)

soueleg aLA §$ Paebpng

00°0%

0003

00'0s

00°0%
oo'os

00°0%

000s

00°0%

00°0%
0008

SVYO TWHNLYN

s3ANddns

FONYNILNIVIY

ONINNYId
ONINNYTd

NOIDTT NvSSYMOd

“JHLINID TvOI03aNW

S3ANddNS/LYW-O0HS

SAMDdNS/LYIW-J0HS
'? IIHIALYIN-100d

uonduasaq Jjunosay

02919-5.-0l

00819601

0c819-62-01

§0089-0L-0L
50089-0.-01

089/9-69-01

0L€59-09-01

0iPL8-55-01

OLPiS65-01
01195501

JAQUWINN JUNO2Y

'e6v$ FHINIO ALINNIWNOD MI3HD LNOYL 18301
L1°8sv$
11°85vs L1'85¥$ 0ZILLIVO 000-SVD TVHNLVYN D001 02/21L1¥0  L¥LE.9T 656869
ZO0 MSI ‘NO ‘OLNOHOL ‘v NLS LOOF XO8 Od ‘SVD NOINN €206
0z 928
0Z'92% 0z'9z% 02/neivro S1IMOL JOHS 'STTvd DiLSV1d 02/12/P0 00gse
0ZF HOd ‘NO ° NYSSVMOd '8Fl X049 "0'd ‘SLHVd OLNY 2 THYAMAYYH JWOH NYSSYMOd 1268
08'clLs
08'eLs 08°El$ Q2/LLIVD STVINIY LVvW 02/L1L10 LYELL)
18 €ld ‘NO * Avd HLUON ‘29% X089 “Tv.INIY LYW Avd HLHON 0688
FHINID ALINNINNOD M33HD LNOUL
Sv'8evs ANIJNJOTIAIA B ONINNVd il0L
st'agrs
ve'00es ve'99es 02/ Hr0 J773aVSI AQVT ONINNY1d 02/21/%0 yoEr
LL'Z2LS LL'zz1$ 0Z/L %0 SADIAYIS "DNINNY I 0Z/LL1H0 %451 4
28 N#1'NO ‘Jiduvd ‘FAHNA HOTAVLE 81 ‘SIDIAEIS ONINNY T TVdIDINNIA 69.6
INJINJOT3IAIA ? ONINNY1d
61°69¢$ FINLTIND ? TVOIRMOLSIH IB101
61°69¢€$
61 69¢% 61°69ES 0ZILLIFD €Zr1-SVO TVHNLYN NOID3T 02/2L/F0  L¥16.9C 6156869
90 MSIN ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL ‘v NAS 100F X083 Od ‘SVD NOINN £206
FHNLIND ? IVIIHOLSIH
00°0§ S3JIAY3S HL1TVIH (€0l
00°0$
00'0% 00°0% QZ/L IR0 SB6EL - SYD TYHNLWYN IHLNID TvDIIQINW 02/2LiP0  LPIEL9C BLSE8EY
290 MSI ‘'NO "OLNOYOL ‘¥ N1S 100% XOF Od 'SY9 NOINN €206
S3DIANIS HLTVIH
viiees NOILVIYOIF 1850
60°€9%
60°€9% 60°£9% 0Z/Vervo NOILO3dSNI 3414 02/LerD S99 1
£XZ8ld ‘NO ‘AvE HLNON V¥ ‘M LIFULS NIVIN Z6¢L ‘341 YVLS AS AL3JVS YAVNYD SNVHL SE00L
S50°F9LS
69°ZFiS 69Z¢LS 02/LLIv0 G9¥| - SVO TYHNLYN DOHS 02/4LF0  2¥16292 6.56869
o€’ 1z$ oe'1gs 0Z/LL1v0 S5EL - SV IVHNLYN 100d 02/LLv0  LY¥L6L92 6.56869
290 MSIN ‘NO 'OLNOHOL ‘¥ NLS 00 XO8 Od ‘SYS NOINN £e06
NOILV3IHI3Y
Juy pasosddy jJwy adoau]  ajeq eng uonduasaq ajeq JAqUINKNadIoAL|

(1odayf teaouddy praounocs)
uny snbayy Areuiuniaid diy
uessemod jo Medisunyy wepg:g 00Ty



60'£96'S6$ :Aed o] sjjig jg101
£6°6LL'ZS X31dS1H0OdS jejol
z8'08t$
{z0'5v8'93)  00°0% 2 SHIVdIH-INIWLINDT 0r619-08-01 ze08re 28'08r% 0Z/121p0 SHIVd3IY HOSSIHAWOD 0Z/1Z/+0 zzess
8N¥ VEd ‘NO ‘AMNAANS ‘avON IDAMEINOITVA G0 01SE ‘AL ODHIY £0¥0L
60°919°L$
(19'558'¥8)  00'08 SVO TVHNLYN 0Z915-08-0L 08°28¢$ 09'28¢8 0ZILLIYO 9£E ) - (v) SYD IVHNLYN XINdSLHOS 0Z/LL/P0  LPL6292 6256869
{(28'552'7$) 0008 SYD TVNLYN 0Z915-08-01 62'9ZZ'13$ 62'822't$ OZILLIYO ZEEL - (8) SYD IWHNLYN XINdSLIHOLS 02/LLP0  LPI629Z 656869
290 MSI ‘NO ‘OLNCYOL ‘v NLS L00F XOH Od ‘SVO NOINN £206
60°SPS$
(bL22219) 00708 S317ddNS ONIQING 09619-08-01 SeLzs se'128 0Z/LZ/¥0 HINVID 021120 8rSSE
(zz'cavs) 00°0% S3ddNS -LNINKINDI 5¥519-08-0} ¥2'€TS vLET$ 0Z/LLIF0 SINOTO 0Z/L 10 8225
; 0Z) Hod ‘NO° NVSSYMOd ‘8¥E XOH "0'd ‘SL13Vd OLNY ¥ SHVMAuVH JNOH NYSSYMOd iZ68
£6°2¢
(L0°zZ41$) 0008 STYLNIY v 04619-08-01 £6'2E% £6'2$ 0Z/LLIVD TYLNTH LYW OZ/LLiIF0 SZELLL
Lrg gid ‘NO ‘ AVE HLYON ‘29 X08 “TYLNIYH 1VIN AVE HLHON 0688
XI1dSLHOdS
asuejeg QLA 1§ psjabpng uonduasag JUNodY J2quny JUNOITY  Jwy paaosddy Jwy anoau)  ajeq ang uondussan aeq JAQUINNS310AU|

{Loday jeaoiddy j1aunon)
uny snbayo Aieunwifaid 4y
uessemod Jo Ayjediounyy wepg:g 0022/



!

: 1£°509%

ﬁmm_mmmnw '8} 00°0% SNOILVHIJO-"1d30Q x4 020295101 GG'ZEES GG ZEL% 0eg/8e/v0 SNOILYHIdO-"1d3A 34 02/82/v0 025 L0066SEE£200Z
Qm.mmm_m_,wv 0008 SNOILYHIdO- Ld3 T 3Hid 02029-51-01 ZSSLig Z5sLLs 02r8eiv0 SNOILVY3dO-"1d30 3414 02/82/¥0 0ZS 929028560002
(86'665'Z13) 00°0$ SNOILYY3dO-1d43Q 34d1d 0Z0Z9-G1-01 0£° /5% 0e 268 0Z/8Ziv0 SNOILYY3d0~"1d30 3414 0Z/82/F0 026G L9EE6EBS0002
£7€ MSI ‘NO ‘ OLNOYOL 'V NLS ‘Z0LY XO8 "0'd "SMHNOMLIN INO OHAAH 2648
01°5629%
(86'665'Z18) 0003 SNOILYHEIJO- Ld30 314 020295101 0L 5623 016628 0ZmeTo SINA TWNNNY 0Z/82/P0 LZ1£0000€
4S8 NLY 'NO ' YMVLL0 ‘002 3LINS ‘133WLS NVIAM | 'SATIHD FHI4 40 "ISSY NYIAYNYD 5898
INELTREVAEEEE
6E'10.'8$ INFJANYIAOO TVHANTD |BjoL
62°L46%
Awﬁmmh”m@ 00'0% S1i43aN3Ig 015190101 FAN 214 10983 02/82/%0 "SNI ALNIBYS1Q/341T 301440 02/82/40 0202 AYIW
(z¢'290°'L1%)  00°0% Qdv0oag AYVHEIN 8 009vZ-01-01 LVLLLS ILLLLS 02/82/v0 SNI ALNIFYSIQ/IAN AdVE3 02/82/+0 0202 AV
PPIZN ‘NO '0O0THIALYAA ‘2291 X008 "0'd (OA) NOILYHLSININGY WNIWIHd “TYIDONYNID 34TNNYIN L9001
9L 0Cys
(€1°168'2%) 0008 1d00/-431HNO/30VLSOd 00919-01-01 GG'8/ES G5'BLES 0218210 A8Y31 Y3IdOD 0Z/82/F0 8818YEl
LLEMSIN ‘NO ‘OLNONOL 'Y NOILVLS ‘P60 X08 'O'd ‘ONI 1381 65001
£re5L°1$
{r1-065'228) 00°0% ONIQTNNSG-HEVYD 052 £5219-01-01 0£'c66% 0E'c66% 0zZ18zivr0 WYYD 052 @ WODI3L 0Z/82/70 025 85EELLE
ZAE 3td ‘NO ‘AMNGANS ‘1IIFULS INFDTM 00§ 'SHHOMLIN SITIOV 9Z66
96’0124
{gL16€'L9) 00'0% 1dODAMEINHNOD/FDVLISOd 00919-01-0L 26'681% 86'681% d3dODAHIIENODEADVLSOd 02/82/40 299685,
s MO MSW ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL 'V NLS 255% XO8 Od 4SSv1 O/ ‘NIANV1 39v1 30 86.6
0L'8S}
(e 9s0'cs) 00°0% S31NddNS 301440 0rs1L9-0L-0) LETrLS FANFA 4SS 0Z/8Tivo S3ANddNS ANY H3dYd 02/3¢/#0 0-TreriLL
9Z1 9971 ‘NO ‘WYHNNVIN ‘2 9079 13341S ANV INEVIN 86% “TVHINID I01440 B89.6
Lo'vees
(r1'065°228) 00°0% ONITTNG-MYYD 052 £6219-01-0L Z6'461% 26'261% 0E/8EHF0 TOHLNOD 1S93d 02/82/¥0 EEFLLEL
S9F ¥ ‘NO ‘YONYSSISSIN ‘LS ANUNOTTIVA 0785 'VAVYNYD NIMNO 9.6
LL°EEVS
(zo9 wm”w@ 00°0% WYHDOHIMEYID 052 PEL1L9°0L-01 S¥.ZLE LA 0Z/8Z/v0 T30 WYHS0Hd Mdv1D 052 02/82/70 ZiPBOr0SIE
(zo'L 5. 18 00°0% X¥3 2 SNOHJ313L 05519-01-01 G9°28% 59°/€% 0Z/82iv0 T30 NIFINVYIN 021820 Ziv80r0sSie
ANQH.._. —m. 1$) 00'0% Xv4 2 INOHJ33L 06615-01-01 09'85% 09°85% 0Z2/8Z/#0 3D HIAS3ND o 0218270 ZivB0P0SIE
ANv.N _‘m_n@ 00°0% HOAVIN-OVVYSIOW d 9z019-01-01 ¥E'89% Pe'89% 0Z/82iv0 130 - DYVSIOW d 0Z/82/%0 2i¥80¥0S 12
C.N..mmv R3] 0003 AINNOD -TIVH Y £2019-01-01 FANIIA S FANF A 02820 17130 TIvH o 02/82/v0 ci¥80F0SIE
(6t £p53) 00°0% TIONNOD-IHSHYHIIA A ceoL9-01-01 19023 19'02% 0Z/82/¥0 1730 MSHYM3Id O 02/82/70 TLPBOVOSIE
6d€ DLW 'NO * STIIIN NOA ‘0016 X089 "0'd ‘LBLY SHID0YH £968
o 437
(re'950'cs) 00°08 S3INddNS 3340 0r519-01-01 0£°9L8 0£'9.% 02/82H0 HNI H3LNIEd 02/82/¥0 SANAVLS
0ZL HOd 'NO '  NVSSVAMOd ‘I X08 '0'd ‘4315319 14380 6568
82'589°'c$
(r1065°228) 0003 ONIQTING-MYYID 062 £GL19-01-01 »6'89L'z8 P6°891'7S 02/82/v0 WHY10 052 @ OMOAH 0Z/2Z/F0 0Z¥ v21¥S0012002
£7€ MSIW ‘NO ‘ OLNOYHOL 'V NLS ‘Z0L¥ X089 "O'd ‘SHHOMLIN INO OHAAH ¢6.8
INFANHIAOD TVHINTO
asuejeg glLA $ payebpng uonduosaq Junoaay JIqWNN JUNe22y  Jwy paaciddy  Juy 2210AU)]  ajeq ang uonduasagg ajeq JAQUINNaI0AU|
JOPUSA

(Lodey teaciddy jiounos)
umy anbayo Ateurunjold dy
uessemod jo Aredioiunpy wdiG:y  0Z0/BZN



{e0002'28)  00°08 ? LYW SHH0M D1Nand 590ee-0¢-01 190z 1902 0Z/8Z1v0 1371gV1 I0V3HNS SHHOM 2N8Nd 02/82/%0 24p80¥0SLe

(c0'902'23! 00°0% ? LY SHHOM D1Ngnd G90€9-02-01 99'0Z% 99'02% 02132/%0 ¥919-46% 1130 Md 02/82/0 ¢ivg0o¥osie
{c0'90£°28) 0008 2 1YIN SHHEOM DigNd §90€9-02-0L 02'65% 04'65% 0ZBeit0 6919-26¥ 17130 Md 02/82/¥0 ¢Ly80r0Sie
{£0'904'23) 00°0% F LYIN SHHOM DIN8Nd G90€9-02-01 19028 L9°0Z% 02/82/¥0 13D SHHOM D1T8Nd 02/82/1+0 2iv80¥0SLe
{sL'8LZ'018)  000% -SHYOM DITand 080€9-02-01 R=Rara 19°0Z% 0Z/82i%0 T3 MYHSNNOW O 02/8¢/P0 CLPBOPOSLE
6dt DEW ‘NO ' STTIIN NOQ ‘0016 X08 "0O'd "L'2LV SH3O0Y 2968
¥0°L9%
(az'g1Z'0t$) 000% ~SXHOM 2Nand 090£8-02-01 ¥0'29% Y0298 0Z/82/v0 IVINIY H3LYIH ¥31VM 0Z/82/H0  S60LPLIE66C02LE
87 MSW ‘NO ' OLNOHOL ‘JAVNY1dST IHL 52 ¥ NOILVLS ¥0S+ X089 Od ‘THLINID ONISSID0U LINIWAV ‘LHOINOD IWOH IINVINIH 568
62°¢c$
(£0'90.'28) 00°0% '8 LV SHMHOM D1T8Ng §90€9-0¢-01 Wlls bPLLS 0Z/82170 H3LYM 02/82/F0 90.52
(66°592'01$)  00°0% “SYHOM OInand 050€9-02-01 26'GLS 86°G1% 0Z/82/v0 334400 02/82/v0 20452
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘ NYSSYMOd ‘ZZ€ X08 "0'd ‘LUVIN-NIVA S, TIFHSO Z168
16'82¢'2%
(gg'69¥'1%) 00°0% “V10aNX-8S3TM0OVHL 02890201 16'8.e'2s 16'84£'2% 02/82/%0 diind DITNYHAaAH 02/82/20 S6.2)
9AE $671 ‘NO "IISINNI ‘LI THLS NVIWAOE 1ZSZ ‘ONI LNJWKINDI NOSNHOr 30r 8088
29°008%
Awo.mmﬁ& 00°0% “INJWLINDA NMYT 0rLE9-02-0L SLGlIE S.51% 0Z/82/¥0 S3NddNS/LYW-LNIWNGIND 3 NMVT 0Z/92/10 FXAA 40
(89'0LP'ZLS) 000 -d43avdo 66 099€9-02-01 06°LrZS 06°L¥2$ 0e/seivo HIAYHO HO4 13N 02/8240 Seris
(Lo'vELS) 00°0% -30HMOVY 96 0¥9ge-02-01 85613 85'6¥3% 0g/eeiv0 JOHXOVE 96 |04 13Nd 02/8¢/¥0 9ZerPs
:.m.mn_.”m@ 00°0% 0Z¥LvD F0HMOVYE 929t9-02-0! £L8rLs £L°8¥L$ 02/821%0 I3N4d 02¥1Y0 02/82/¢0 LETAA 444
(og°zre'L$) 00°'0$ -30HHMOVE 0L 029£9-02-01 85'6v$ g5'6v% 02/82ivD JOHNMIVE 014 YO4 13Nd 02/82/%0 9ZerPs
{(8e'591'1%) 0002 “OWO 5102 009€9-02-01 ve ivS YT LivS 02/82/#0 13Nd HONYL AIHD 02/82/v0 PXAA 44
(66°820'18) 00°0% = NOL 2/ Q404 6002 085€5-0C-01 e Lvs Yo ive 0e/82/v0 73aN4 0514 02/82/%0 LEevvs
(1r'zoo'oLs) 0003 HINIMLHDITHS €102 095€£9-02-01 Z1L'6v3 FANG) £ 0g/182/0 HIANIMLHDITYT €102 YOd 13N 02/82/#0 eeTrPS
(83°ZEZ'18) 00'0$ - JWD Pi0T 0vS£9-02-01 ¥Z iv3 LA £ 0Z2/82/¥0 T3Nd AJHD #102 02/82/%0 FXAA 44"
(8£'€LT'01$) 0008 “HANIMHDIFYL 1102 025€9-02-0L Z1'6¥% FAN:] ¢ 02/82/v0 HINMLHDIFYS 1102 ¥Od 713Nd 02/8Zi+0 QZZrPS
{ye'229'v8) 00°0% SHANIMLHODIFYY 102 505£9-02-01 FANG) 43 FAN 4 02/8Ziv0 H3NIMLHDIFd4 #1102 JOd 13n4d 02/82/%0 A4 0]
1r8 81d ‘NO ‘' AVE HLYON ‘80§ X08 "0O°d ‘1L334LS NOSAID 99 ‘WNI10HL3d IHOOW WIr 9088
£LeeZ$
(61°868'¢$) 00°0% SOa18 SHHOM DiR8Nd 280€9-02-01 oe'leg g’ 1Les 0Z/82/v0 S3AILNILN $9079 SMHOM 2Nand 02/82/40 025 92686581 00T
(61'968'c3) 00°0% $OA79 SHYOM DITand 290€9-02-01 6t'GZS 6% 52% 0zZ/8eiv0 S3ILNILN 9479 SHHOM D1N9Nd 02/82/0 025 L9£966/90002
(61'868'c$) 00°0% $9079 SHHO0M 2IMand €90£9-02-01 v6'921L% 69213 02/eivo S3AILNILN $Da78 SHY0M D1T19Nd 02/82/70 025 583t LE000T
£7€ MSIN ‘NO ' OLNOYOL 'V NLS ‘201 XO8 "O'd “SHHOMLIN 2INO OHAAH 6.8
SMUOM DIndnd
008118 INJNW1LYVY43A JdId 1gjol
ZLoeLs
(06'595°1%) 00'0$ S1143N3g 01519-61-01 2L 9Els ZLeeLs 02Z/82/v0 SNI ALINAYSIAAT JN GZ/82/r0 0202 AV
#dPTZN ‘NO ‘OO0 THILVYM *£Z91 XO8 "O'd (OA) NOILYHLSININGY NNINIYC “TIVIONVNIL 34NNV 19001
6¥'ces
{86'666'218) 000% SNOILVYH3Id0O-"1d3Q 344 020Z29-51-01 6VEEs 6rees 02/82/¥0 SNOILYY3IdO-"1d3q 341 02/82/0  QC¥ 088BPZLS0L
2XZ OEIN ‘NO "MHOA HLHON 0006 X089 Od ‘VAYNYD 1138 6506
WisLs
(ee'e65'2LS)  00°0% SNOILVYH3d0-" 1434 3414 020295101 Lyl 7 i181s 02/82iv0 SNOILYH3dO- 1434 3d(4 0Z/8Z/40 ZP9990E vLYELLL
290 MSI ‘'NO 'OLNOYOL ‘v NL1S L00Y XO8 Od ‘SVO NOINN £Z06
1Z°6Z%
(86°665'CL$) 00°0% SNOILVHIJO-" 1430 344 02029-51-01 1g°62% 12628 0Z/82P0 113D X022 8 02/82/t0 ZLvBOPOSIE
6dE Ot ‘NO * STUW NOQ ‘0016 X088 "O'd ‘LBLY SHIOONH 2968
ajuejeg QLA $ p=ysbpng uonduasag Junoaoy JAQWINN JUNo22Yy iy paaoaddy  Jwy anioau}  ajeq ang uonduoasaq ajeq JaquINNadIoAL|

(Hodey teaouddy pounon)
uny anbayo Aieutwiifaid 4/
uessemod jo Aedidunyy wdis:y  0Z0L8TH



\

96°169°4$ LINIINNOYIANST [BJ0L
£9'851%
(61°296°1$) 00'0% AOVIUVYD SLi43aN3g 015196201 £9061% £0'951L% 0g/8eyo syjauaq abequeb pue jlypue) 0Z/8Z/0 0202 AWW
PN ‘NO ‘00 THILYM ‘LZ91 X008 "0'd (OA) NOLLVHLSININGY WNIWINJ “IVIONVNIZ I4TNNYIN 19001
L'88t°L$
00°0% 0c'0% HIASNYHL-IOVYILVYD 058¥9-52-01 LWweee'Ls LP'88e s 02/8¢i¥0 SHIVd3d O/ 02/82/P0 L0102
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘NVYSSYMOd ‘LS NIVIW £LL ‘32IAH3S OLNY NYSSYMOd 2296
60'S$
(zgzIE'1vs) 000 -34S TIHANYT 016¥9-G2-01 60'GS 60°5% 02/820 T13I-3LS THIANY 02/82/40 SLYROVOS 1T
6d€ DEW ‘NO  STIHN NOQ ‘0016 X08 "O°d '1R1V SHIDOH z968
FAN:T o
(/5°618'¥3) 00°0% F1DIH3A JOVEHYD 0e8y9-SZ-0t A N AN 02/8Z/70 ADNYL I3DVEHVYD HO-4 13N4 02/82/F0 8Cervs
Lrg 8id ‘NO ' A¥E HLYON ‘80% X08 "'O’d ‘L33¥1S NOSHIO 99 '"WNIT0M.LId SHOOW WIr 2088
L2068
{ze'z1e"1v8) 0008 -3LS TUIANY] 0lL6¥9-S2-01 L£'06% L4 D6S 0c/8¢/v0 QUAAH SANJNS/LYIW-3 LIS TTIJANY] 02/82/#0 025 L9r8EYIS0002
£7¢ MSIN 'NO * OLNOYOL ‘v NLS ‘Z0L¥ X098 '0'd ‘SHHOMLIN INO ONIAH 6.8
INJWNOYIANI
81°86E'01$ SHIYOM 21718Nd 18101
00'0cZ$
000% 00°0% ALIIVS-SXHHOM DNaNd 0£0£9-02-01 oo'oees 000e2s 0Z/82/70 138I0XN ANYTHIONINS ONINIVHL AIY LSHIS 02/82/40 61-€0-0202
8H¥ Vid ‘NO ‘AV3 HLHON ‘LS NOTVAY ¥¢ ‘QIV 1SHId SIAVMIDOHS €EPOL
6+°850°5$
i06°2ZL'v18)  000% TOULNOD "HILNIM QCreg-02-01 6¥'850'5% 6¥'850°6% 02/82/¥0 1IvS GvOd 02/8¢/t0 gLl
2P VBN ‘NO ‘OH3EIDVTIVM 1S 1INHVYO S5-5€ *INI INIWI 1T HLHON £EE0L
10°€65%
(66'59.'0t%) ©000% -SMHOM 2Nand 050£9-02-01 LO'EBSS LO'E6ss TAL T4 A 'SNI ALINIGVYSIORLIN Md 02/82/70 0202 AYIN
YdPrEZN ‘NO 'O0THILYM 229} X08 '0'd (OA) NOILYHLSININGY WNINTHd “TYIDONVNIS SSINNVIN 19001
Z0tris
{g2'812'018) 000% -SHEOM 2178Nd 090€9-02-0L 0vis FAVR i 02820 SAIANS ® IVIHILYIN-SHEOM 21N9Nd 02/22/40 9901 1029002858
62F DLW 'NO “MHOA HLHON ‘ST NOQ NOILYLS '0SZ¢ X08 'O'd ‘AL 1138 856
gL'S8ES
Amm.mw_.npav 00'0% -OWN9D 6102 009€8-02-01 26°08% Z6'08% 0Z/8Z1v0 314 1O 028210 84102
(8€'591'13) 00°0% -OWD 6102 009¢9-02-0) 9z v0es 9Z'r0Ls 02/82/+0 SYUIVdIH ONIYIILS 02/82/70 ¥0L02
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘NYSSYMOJ ‘LS NIVIN £1£ ‘TDIAHES OLNY NYSSYMOd 2296
SL°06%
(oz'gLZ'0t$) o000% “SHHOM SIMand 090£9-02-01 S1°06% SL'06% 0e/8eive INOHd JOVUVD Md 02/82/¥0  02F 2ESEPELS0L
IXZ OLIN ‘NO "MHOA HLMON ‘0006 X089 Od ‘YA¥YNVYD 1138 6506
6ELLES
(aL'812'018) 0003 ~SHHOM D8Nnd 080€9-02-01 6ELLES 6ELLIES 0Z/18eiv0 IYLNIY HAMOL 02/82/¥0 Z0VLELL
SWY Vid 'NO ‘' A¥V8 HLYON ‘avod TWIHIdINI ZE1 ‘LT dNOXND WOIIT1IL WNHLDIAdS Z868
6LZrLs
aouejeg QLA $ paebpng uondussagt UNossy Jaquinp unoddy iy paacaddy  Jwy aosloau]  ayeq @ng uondussaqg aeq JaquINNal1oAU|

{oday jeaosddy prounos)
uny snbays Aieunwialid 4V
uessemod jo Kedisunyy wdig:y 0Z0L/8LW



(ZL'v0Z'19)

2z 149

(Z1'p0Z'1S)
(s 66v8)
(16°6¥.8)

(ze'zvss)

(ZL°229'19)

{(er'eczs)

(9%'219'18)

{99'e62°2%)

{26°8¥v$)
(99°€62°23)

aouefeg QLA

00'0%

00°0%

00°0%
0008
0008

o008

00703

00°0%

00°0%

00°0%

00°0%
0o'os

$ pajabpng

S3ANddNS/LYW-DDHS

“NINAY-NOLLY3YO3y

S3ANddNS/LYW-DOHS
2 TYIHILYW-100d
SANIINS/LYW-SHEVL

ANINIDPOIND MV TAS

HOLO3A4SNI ONIguNg

Q1S dO"d/MYIAS/08D

-dOLI3dSNI ONIATHING

“3SNOHdWNA Y3 LYM

“NOILNAM LSI0 ¥31VMm
-ASNOHdWNG Y3 1w

uonduasag JunoIoy

0LrL9-65-0L

01949-55-01

OLvL9-65-0L
OLLL9G65-0L
0L0L9-55-01

08529-05-01

00L29-5+-01

S1LZ9SP-0L

0LLZSSY-0L

015¥95-0¢-0L

0£5+9-0£-01
0LS¥S-0€-01

lagquinp Junosoy

¥5'06ES NOILVIYD3Y 18101
% R L]
oIS E9'FLE 02182/v0 7119 INOH ATHLNOW OOHS 02/82/%0  0ZF 6895F2.502
IXZ DS ‘NO "MHOA HLHON ‘0006 X0O8 Od ‘YaVYNYD 1139 6506
19°0Z$
19'02% 19'02% 0Z18ZIv0 1133 VD703 0ZI8ZIV0 TLYBOPOSLE
6dE DS 'NO * STIIW NOQ ‘0016 X018 'O'd ‘LBLY SHIDO0YH 7968
0£'562%
8y oLLS 8roLLS 0Z/9zIvo OYAAH S3NdDNS/LYIN-DOHS 02/82/¥0 026 ZPR0¥Z960002Z
£0rrs £0°¥¥S 02/8ZH0 QNAAH $317ddNS T WIHALYW-100d 02/8Z/40 0Z¢ 981 ¥6.80002
6.0vIS 6L0v18 0Z/82/¥0 OYAAH S3NddNS/LYIN-SMYYd 02/8Z/¥0 0ZF £280.¥260002
£7€ MSI ‘NO  OLNOXHOL 'V NLS ‘201t X049 "0'd ‘SMEOMLIN INO OHAAH Z6i8
NOILVYIHO3N
bi'ves AL¥3d0O¥d '? SNOSY3d O1 NOILOALOHd Iejol
LL9%
LLves L ye% 0Z/8ZTIY0 1132 NYISSNOW 8 02/82/H0 TLY80F0GLE
6dE JEW 'NO * $TIW NOQ ‘0016 XOH 'C'd ‘LBLY SHIDON Z968
ALHId0OHd ® SNOSHId O1 NOILD3I10¥d
L1Lvs INIFWLNYLIA DONIATING ie3oL
9Z561%
9Z'661% 9Z'561$ 0Z/8Z/Y0  'SNI ALMIAVSIGIHIN HOLOILSNI ONIAING 0Z/82/+0 0202 AYW
PdPrZN ‘NO ‘OCOTHIALYM ‘LZ9L X098 'O'd {OA) NOILVHLSININGY WNIWINC “TVIONYNIZ S4TNNYIN 19001
98'€eTS
92'¢22s o8'€ZTs 0Z/9Z/P0 NOILYLS SNIXD0QJ 0Z/82/40 ¥5+9605101
LdE MSW 'NO ‘OLNQUOL *.¥., NOILYLS 08 X0d "0'd “ONI YAYNVD 1130 Z£96
§9°Z5%
59'25% 59°Z6% 0Z/BEIP0 JDIAHIS 113D SHIADO0Y 02/82/+0 ZLVS0P0GIE
6dE DEW ‘NO ' STIIW NOQ ‘0016 X019 "0O'd "L2L1Y SH3ID0H c968
ININLHYA3A ©NIa1ing
LL6VE'LS H3ILVM igI0)
8E'vvs
6 ¥ 6E vrS 0Z/82i+0 3NOHd 3SMNOH dWNd J3LYM 02/82/v0  0Z¥ BLEEYZLG0L
IXZ DEW 'NO ‘MHOA HLYON ‘0006 XO8 Od ‘vAVNYD 1138 6506
8£°508°1$
69198 G8°18% 0TI9ZI0 SIANJINS/LYW-NOLLNGINLSIA YLV 02/82/¥0 026G ¥S0GEESZ0002
£S5 E2218S £5E2Z 1S 02192170 OHAAH S3ddNS/LYW-ISNOHSWNG HILVM 0Z/82/70 0ZP B20$52£00002
€7 MSIA 'NO * OLNONOL ‘¥ NLS ‘Z0L¥ X089 '0'd ‘SHHOMLIN INO ONAAH z6.8
d3L1lVYM

juy paaosddy Jwy asioAu]  3jeq ang uonduasag FED [T TNELTLEAT]]

(Hoday jeacuddy j1ounos)
uny anbayo Aieujunjoid d/y
uesSSEMO 40 Aujedioiunyy

sjeg

wdig:y pzOZ/BEY



(96°195'2%)

(zoeg1s)

(0Lv22'628)
(92'vzz'628)

(rz'zoz'ts)

{£0°066'L$)

(cr'9e5'6S)

(zs-005%)

BLzvs'Le)

22218'01%)

{1L1¥00'88)

{11 '¥00'8%}

aJuefeg QLA

0008

00°0%

0003
00'0%

0003

00'0%

0003

o008

0008

00°0%

00'0%

000

$ pajebpng

2L01s8
S3SNIdX3 3VI440 §8519-08-01 L0158

9.'68%
X¥d4® SNOH4313L 06619-08-01 9.'68%

¥S'e8L'es

OYaAH 01919-08-01 TO¥6G 98
OYaAH 01919-08-0t z6'88Ls

69°66€°1LS
00°88Z$
$3Nddns 00819-52-01 008823

orivis
S.143N3g 0lS18-52-01 oF'iviL$

24'015% 02/8eivo S3SNIX3 301440 02/82/P0 0cr 289iLLE

ZAL 3ed ‘NO ‘AYNSANS “LITULS INIDIH 005 'SHYOMLIN SAIOV 9266

9.'68% 0e/82/v0 130 3NN 02/82/F0 ZLv80p0sie

6d€ DLW ‘NO ‘ STTIIN NOQ ‘0016 X089 'O'd “L'8LV SHID0H 2968

Z9've5 9% 0e/eeno OYAAH 02/8Z/¥0 025 €/¥1 20921002

26'881% oc/eeryo OYAAH 02Z/82/¥0¢ 0C¥ SPEEYFLE0002

£7€ MSW 'NO * OLNOHOL ‘v NLS ‘Z0+P X08 '0°'d 'SHYOMLIN INO OHAAH 2618
XI1dSLHOdS

FUINID ALINNNNOD M3IFUD LNOUL |EIoL

00'88Z% 0Z/8eiv0 ONIHOLINOW TYNNNY 02/82/¥0 80046+
9r'1 NES ‘NS ‘NOLWHOA 'HLHON ANNIAY LS1-04 ‘HILUNDIS 85¢0)

ov'ivig 0zrgeivo ‘SNI ALENGYSIA/3dIT D301 0Z/82/70 0Z0z AVIN

PdPTZN ‘NO 'COTHILYM '2291 XO8 "0'd {OA) NOILLVHLSININGY WNINTYd "IVIONVYNIY SAITNNYIN 19001

0o'viiS
JONYNILNIVIN 02819-5/-0l 0oOvLLS 00vLLS 0280 JOYLNOD LS3d 0282170 80SIEL
58P ¥S1 'NO 'VONVSSISSIN ‘LS INUNO0ATVS 0v85 ‘VAVYNYD NDRIO 9.16

59799

? Xvd 8 INOHJI3AL 086195401 95'25% 55253 0z/8e/v0 1130 3INIaYYT A 62/82/¥0 cLy80r0sie
6d€ OEIW ‘NO ' STIIN NOQ ‘0016 XO8 "O'd ‘1'21V SHIADON 2968

S0'v6LS
SVO TVHNLYN 02919-6.-01 SOv61lS SOveLS 0z8eivo SVO TWUNLYN 02/82/P0  GELOFIESE.E60E
8rF MSW ‘NO ' OINOHOL ‘JAVNVYIdSE 3HL SZ ¥ NOILVLS #05% XO8 Od 'THINID ONISSIDOUd LNSWAV ‘LHO4WOD AWOH 3INVIIIY 568

69'€09%
OHAAH 0loLe-5L-01 69't09% 69'c09% AL T4 8] OYAAH 02/82/v0 02§ S2585€60100C
£7€ MSW ‘NO * OLNOYOL ‘v NLS ‘201 X083 'O'd 'SHYOMLIN INO OHAAH 6.8

0L°185%
WsEL$
NOID3T NYSSVYMOd 08949-55-0L IBELS
A g
NOID3T NvSSYAMOd 089495901 62 Erre

JUINTD ALINNWNOD M3349 LNOWlL
JANLIND 2 TVIINOLSIH IBI0L

HWeeELs 0Z2/82/¥0 IANOHd NOI©TT NYSSYMOd 02/82/P0  0ZP SEZZrTLS0L
LXZ OEW "NO "MHOA HLHON ‘0006 X049 Od ‘YAVNYD 1349 6506

6TEPPS 0Z/82/v0 JSNIdXI NOID3T NYSSYMOd 02/82/0 0Z¢ ¥eLyeb02002
£7€ MSIN ‘NO ' OLNOHOL 'V NLS ‘Z0LY X09 '0'd ‘SHHOMLIAN INO OHAAH 6.8

FHNLTIND B TVIRIOLSIH

uonduasaq Junodoy Jaguiny Junoddy  Jwy paaouddy  jJwy asicau]  ajeq ang uonduosag ajeq JaqUWINN32I0AU|

(Lodey reaouddy praunos)
uny 0:&020 \QNEE:Q..Q dv
uessemod jo Ajpedioiunpy wdigiy  0202/821%



(6e°93%) 000

(12'295'28)  000%

sdueeg QLA § pajeBpng

“32AAGIS-AHLINTD

S1lid3aN3g

uonduosag junosay

0L159-68-01

0L519-08-01

Jaguiny unoasy

26962558 :Ked o] s|ng 3ol

£6'528 SAR313NTI fej0)
£5'52%
£5°6Z% £5'62% 0Z/ggivo OHAAH-AYL3WAD 02/82/¥0 025 L8OLPFTLZ00Z
€71 MSIN 'NO ' OLNOYOL ‘¥ N1S ‘'Z0Ly X08 'O'd ‘SHYOMLIN INO OYAAH 6.8
CEIEENE]NER
BSI¥S'LS X31dSLHOdS 18jol
95°L51%
95°/G1¢ 952613 0Z/mee/ro “SNI ALITEYSIA3dN Jd9s 0T/82/0 020Z AviN
¥d¥TZN ‘NO "00THILYM *2Z91 X018 "0'd (OA) NOLLYHLSININGY WNINTH "TVIINYNIA 34NNV 19001
jwy paaosddy  Jwy esioau]  ajeqg eng uonduosag a)eq J3qWNNa2|0AY|

(moday jeacuddy fraunos)
uny snbeayn Aieunuiijolrd d/y
uessemod jo Ayedidiunyy wdiS:y  0ZOZ/BZH



